
From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
To: Richards, Dennis (CPC); Johnson, Milicent (CPC); Koppel, Joel (CPC); Moore, Kathrin (CPC); Melgar, Myrna

(CPC); planning@rodneyfong.com; Rich Hillis; Aaron Jon Hyland - HPC; Andrew Wolfram (andrew@tefarch.com);
Black, Kate (CPC); Diane Matsuda; Ellen Johnck - HPC; Jonathan Pearlman; Richard S. E. Johns

Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR MARK FARRELL, CITY DEPARTMENTS AND GOOGLE WIFI ANNOUNCE

DIGITAL EQUITY PROGRAM FOR PUBLIC HOUSING SITES
Date: Wednesday, May 02, 2018 10:09:59 AM
Attachments: 5.2.18 Public Housing Wi-Fi Announcement.pdf

 
 
Jonas P. Ionin,
Director of Commission Affairs
 
Planning Department¦City & County of San Francisco
1650 Mission Street, Suite 400, San Francisco, CA 94103
Direct: 415-558-6309¦Fax: 415-558-6409
 
jonas.ionin@sfgov.org
www.sfplanning.org
 
From: MayorsPressOffice, MYR (MYR) 
Sent: Wednesday, May 02, 2018 9:55 AM
To: MayorsPressOffice, MYR (MYR)
Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR MARK FARRELL, CITY DEPARTMENTS AND GOOGLE WIFI
ANNOUNCE DIGITAL EQUITY PROGRAM FOR PUBLIC HOUSING SITES
 
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Wednesday, May 2, 2018
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, 415-554-6131
 

*** PRESS RELEASE ***
MAYOR MARK FARRELL, CITY DEPARTMENTS AND

GOOGLE WIFI ANNOUNCE DIGITAL EQUITY PROGRAM
FOR PUBLIC HOUSING SITES

The comprehensive program aims to help those most impacted by the digital divide
 
San Francisco, CA— Mayor Mark Farrell, City Administrator Naomi Kelly and Google WiFi
today announced a comprehensive digital equity program at two public housing sites to
provide residents with digital skills training, free high-speed internet access and Google WiFi
devices.
 
“Access to the internet and digital skills are necessary tools for San Francisco residents to
compete and thrive in today’s modern society,” said Mayor Mark Farrell. “With over 100,000
San Franciscans who still lack internet access at home, I am working every day to provide
equitable solutions for communities and residents who have been left behind by the status
quo.”
 
The Department of Technology, Mayor’s Office of Housing and Community Development,
the Office of Economic Workforce Development, the City’s Committee on Information
Technology, and the City Administrator’s Office of Digital Equity have been partnering since
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


today announced a comprehensive digital equity program at two public housing sites to provide 


residents with digital skills training, free high-speed internet access and Google WiFi devices. 


 


“Access to the internet and digital skills are necessary tools for San Francisco residents to 


compete and thrive in today’s modern society,” said Mayor Mark Farrell. “With over 100,000 


San Franciscans who still lack internet access at home, I am working every day to provide 


equitable solutions for communities and residents who have been left behind by the status quo.” 


 


The Department of Technology, Mayor’s Office of Housing and Community Development, the 


Office of Economic Workforce Development, the City’s Committee on Information Technology, 


and the City Administrator’s Office of Digital Equity have been partnering since January to pilot 


this digital equity program at the Robert B. Pitts and Hunters Point West public housing sites.  


 


The Office of Digital Equity selected the two housing sites following a needs assessment late last 


year. Robert B. Pitts is a 203-unit family housing site in the Western Addition and Hunters Point 


West is a 110-unit family housing site in Bayview-Hunters Point. 


 


Since January, these sites have been receiving the following services: 


 


 Free, high-speed internet access to all residents through a partnership between the 


Department of Technology and local internet service provider, Monkeybrains. 


 Onsite computer labs offering digital literacy classes, workshops on technology topics 


and internet basics and a program to prepare transitional-age youth for careers in IT.  


 Free technology support and hardware repair services.  


 


“As Chair of the Committee on Information Technology (COIT), one of my top priorities has 


been digital inclusion, and we need both public and private investment to meet this goal,” said 


City Administrator Naomi Kelly. “I am pleased that public housing residents are the first to 


benefit from this critical initiative.” 


 


“The Department of Technology supports empowered communities by delivering reliable 
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internet access to secure opportunities for residents and increase positive life outcomes,” said the 


City Chief Information Officer for San Francisco, Linda Gerull.   


 


Additionally, Google has generously donated 100 Google WiFi devices to help residents connect 


wirelessly to the internet. The devices are being distributed at each housing site to residents who 


complete a two-hour training workshop covering internet basics, online safety and web resources 


for employment, education and health.  


 


"Google continues our effort to give back in communities where we live and work," said 


Rebecca Prozan, Head of Public Affairs in California for Google. "The donation of Google WiFi 


devices helps get our neighbors connected and is a step in the right direction as we aim to 


minimize the digital divide." 


 


In addition to the agencies involved in this program, several additional City departments are 


actively addressing the digital divide, including the Department of Aging and Adult Services and 


the San Francisco Public Library. The library is spearheading the upcoming Connect with Tech 


Week 2018, from May 7 – 12, with a series of events across the city to promote online access 


and technology skill-building to reduce digital disparities in local communities. The full schedule 


of more than 60 events and classes is available at sfpl.org/ConnectWithTech.  


 


The ability to access and effectively use digital technology is a vital necessity in today’s world. 


Yet more than 100,000 San Franciscans lack high-speed internet at home and many residents 


lack basic digital literacy skills, with the city’s lowest income residents among the most at-risk. 


City efforts are focused on addressing the digital divide to help all residents use technology to 


achieve the following outcomes: 


 


 Improved education and further access to education opportunities. 


 Obtaining meaningful employment and access to apply for jobs online. 


 Accessing health care and health information. 


 Accessing government programs and services. 


 Finding information and services necessary for daily life.  


 


The Department of Technology, in partnership with Google and various City Departments, will 


evaluate the program and its outcomes in the summer and expects to consider expanding the 


program to additional public housing sites with its partners.    


 


 


### 
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January to pilot this digital equity program at the Robert B. Pitts and Hunters Point West
public housing sites.
 
The Office of Digital Equity selected the two housing sites following a needs assessment late
last year. Robert B. Pitts is a 203-unit family housing site in the Western Addition and Hunters
Point West is a 110-unit family housing site in Bayview-Hunters Point.
 
Since January, these sites have been receiving the following services:
 

·         Free, high-speed internet access to all residents through a partnership between the
Department of Technology and local internet service provider, Monkeybrains.

·         Onsite computer labs offering digital literacy classes, workshops on technology topics
and internet basics and a program to prepare transitional-age youth for careers in IT.

·         Free technology support and hardware repair services.
 
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
internet access to secure opportunities for residents and increase positive life outcomes,” said
the City Chief Information Officer for San Francisco, Linda Gerull. 
 
Additionally, Google has generously donated 100 Google WiFi devices to help residents
connect wirelessly to the internet. The devices are being distributed at each housing site to
residents who complete a two-hour training workshop covering internet basics, online safety
and web resources for employment, education and health.
 
"Google continues our effort to give back in communities where we live and work," said
Rebecca Prozan, Head of Public Affairs in California for Google. "The donation of Google
WiFi devices helps get our neighbors connected and is a step in the right direction as we aim
to minimize the digital divide."
 
In addition to the agencies involved in this program, several additional City departments are
actively addressing the digital divide, including the Department of Aging and Adult Services
and the San Francisco Public Library. The library is spearheading the upcoming Connect with
Tech Week 2018, from May 7 – 12, with a series of events across the city to promote online
access and technology skill-building to reduce digital disparities in local communities. The
full schedule of more than 60 events and classes is available at sfpl.org/ConnectWithTech.
 
The ability to access and effectively use digital technology is a vital necessity in today’s
world. Yet more than 100,000 San Franciscans lack high-speed internet at home and many
residents lack basic digital literacy skills, with the city’s lowest income residents among the
most at-risk.
City efforts are focused on addressing the digital divide to help all residents use technology to
achieve the following outcomes:
 

·         Improved education and further access to education opportunities.
         Obtaining meaningful employment and access to apply for jobs online.

https://sfpl.org/ConnectWithTech


·
·         Accessing health care and health information.
·         Accessing government programs and services.
·         Finding information and services necessary for daily life.

 
The Department of Technology, in partnership with Google and various City Departments,
will evaluate the program and its outcomes in the summer and expects to consider expanding
the program to additional public housing sites with its partners.  
 
 

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
Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR MARK FARRELL CELEBRATES 100 YEARS OF SAN FRANCISCO

GENERATING CLEAN ENERGY
Date: Tuesday, May 01, 2018 2:05:09 PM
Attachments: 5.1.18 Hetch Hetchy 100 Year Anniversary.pdf

 
 
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
Sent: Tuesday, May 01, 2018 1:30 PM
To: MayorsPressOffice, MYR (MYR)
Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR MARK FARRELL CELEBRATES 100 YEARS OF SAN FRANCISCO
GENERATING CLEAN ENERGY
 
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Tuesday, May 1, 2018
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, 415-554-6131
 

*** PRESS RELEASE ***
MAYOR MARK FARRELL CELEBRATES 100 YEARS
OF SAN FRANCISCO GENERATING CLEAN ENERGY

City-owned and operated Hetch Hetchy Power system started generating 100 percent
greenhouse gas-free electricity on May 6, 1918

 
San Francisco, CA— Today, Mayor Mark Farrell signed a resolution recognizing a historic
milestone in the City’s ongoing efforts to provide cleaner, greener electricity to San Francisco
residents and businesses.
 
This month marks the 100th anniversary of the City-owned and operated Hetch Hetchy Power
System, which has generated and delivered 100 percent greenhouse gas-free hydroelectricity
to San Francisco. To honor that historic milestone, Mayor Farrell introduced a resolution
proclaiming May 6, 2018 as Hetch Hetchy Power System Centennial Day.
 
“For a century, San Francisco has been a pioneer in clean energy practices,” said Mayor
Farrell. “We can celebrate this achievement, but with such great uncertainty at the federal
level when it comes to environmental support, we must double down on our current efforts to
be an innovative leader in sustainable energy policies. While we recognize one century of
accomplishments, we are plotting out the next 100 years of responsible environmental
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1 DR. CARLTON B. GOODLETT PLACE, ROOM 200 
SAN FRANCISCO, CALIFORNIA 94102-4681 


TELEPHONE: (415) 554-6141 


 


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


System, which has generated and delivered 100 percent greenhouse gas-free hydroelectricity to 


San Francisco. To honor that historic milestone, Mayor Farrell introduced a resolution 


proclaiming May 6, 2018 as Hetch Hetchy Power System Centennial Day. 


 


“For a century, San Francisco has been a pioneer in clean energy practices,” said Mayor Farrell. 


“We can celebrate this achievement, but with such great uncertainty at the federal level when it 


comes to environmental support, we must double down on our current efforts to be an innovative 


leader in sustainable energy policies. While we recognize one century of accomplishments, we 


are plotting out the next 100 years of responsible environmental stewardship.”  


 


San Francisco has pursued innovative and sustainable energy practices at the same time that the 


City’s population and economy has experienced unprecedented growth, debunking the falsehood 


that strong environmental and economic objectives are mutually exclusive. The City has reduced 


greenhouse gas emissions by 29 percent, while the population has grown by 20 percent and gross 


domestic product has increased 111 percent.  


 


Last month, Mayor Farrell announced two more ambitious goals for San Francisco—a pledged 


for the City to be carbon neutral by 2050 and to have 80 percent of trips be taken by sustainable 


modes by 2030. 


 


The Hetch Hetch energy systems powers some of the City’s most recognizable landmarks and 


services, including City Hall, Muni vehicles, the San Francisco Zoo and San Francisco 


International Airport. It also helps to meet the City’s goal to use 100 percent renewable energy 


by 2030.  


 


As the City continues to eliminate carbon emissions from its electricity supply, the San Francisco 


Public Utilities Commission (SFPUC) is empowering residents and businesses with an array of 


programs and initiatives that make it easy to go green. In addition to clean Hetch Hetchy 
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electricity, the SFPUC also offers San Francisco electricity customers CleanPowerSF, a clean 


energy partnership with PG&E.  


 


CleanPowerSF is now serving more than 80,000 San Francisco customers with cleaner energy 


from renewable sources such as wind and solar power. The SFPUC anticipates enrolling all 


eligible San Francisco customers in CleanPowerSF by July 2019.  


 


“Every new SFPUC power customer is making a real and immediate impact on climate change,” 


said SFPUC General Manager Harlan L. Kelly, Jr. “We are committed to bringing clean, safe 


and reliable energy to all San Franciscans.”   


 


The SFPUC is also building a Hetch Hetchy electricity distribution line in the City’s Mission 


Bay Neighborhood to better connect future customers with Hetch Hetchy clean electricity. 


Additionally, this year, the SFPUC will bring online four new solar arrays totaling 400 kilowatts 


in new renewable generation for the City. 


 


### 


 


 







stewardship.”
 
San Francisco has pursued innovative and sustainable energy practices at the same time that
the City’s population and economy has experienced unprecedented growth, debunking the
falsehood that strong environmental and economic objectives are mutually exclusive. The City
has reduced greenhouse gas emissions by 29 percent, while the population has grown by 20
percent and gross domestic product has increased 111 percent.
 
Last month, Mayor Farrell announced two more ambitious goals for San Francisco—a pledged
for the City to be carbon neutral by 2050 and to have 80 percent of trips be taken by
sustainable modes by 2030.
 
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
 
As the City continues to eliminate carbon emissions from its electricity supply, the San
Francisco Public Utilities Commission (SFPUC) is empowering residents and businesses with
an array of programs and initiatives that make it easy to go green. In addition to clean Hetch
Hetchy electricity, the SFPUC also offers San Francisco electricity customers CleanPowerSF,
a clean energy partnership with PG&E.
 
CleanPowerSF is now serving more than 80,000 San Francisco customers with cleaner energy
from renewable sources such as wind and solar power. The SFPUC anticipates enrolling all
eligible San Francisco customers in CleanPowerSF by July 2019.
 
“Every new SFPUC power customer is making a real and immediate impact on climate
change,” said SFPUC General Manager Harlan L. Kelly, Jr. “We are committed to bringing
clean, safe and reliable energy to all San Franciscans.” 
 
The SFPUC is also building a Hetch Hetchy electricity distribution line in the City’s Mission
Bay Neighborhood to better connect future customers with Hetch Hetchy clean electricity.
Additionally, this year, the SFPUC will bring online four new solar arrays totaling 400
kilowatts in new renewable generation for the City.
 

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
Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR MARK FARRELL ANNOUNCES MAY 1 BUDGET WITH SIGNIFICANT

INVESTMENTS IN LONG-TERM INFRASTRUCTURE PROJECTS
Date: Tuesday, May 01, 2018 11:10:02 AM
Attachments: 5.1.18 May 1 Budget Investments.pdf

 
 
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
Sent: Tuesday, May 01, 2018 11:08 AM
To: MayorsPressOffice, MYR (MYR)
Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR MARK FARRELL ANNOUNCES MAY 1 BUDGET WITH
SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS IN LONG-TERM INFRASTRUCTURE PROJECTS
 
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Tuesday, May 1, 2018
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, 415-554-6131
 

*** PRESS RELEASE ***
 

MAYOR MARK FARRELL ANNOUNCES MAY 1 BUDGET
WITH SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS IN LONG-TERM

INFRASTRUCTURE PROJECTS
Muni service, Embarcadero Seawall, public library system and clean energy projects

to be supported by proposed budget
 
San Francisco, CA— Mayor Mark Farrell today announced significant investments to expand
Muni’s light-rail fleet, strengthen the Embarcadero Seawall and renovate San Francisco’s
public libraries.
 
“While it is important that we address the pressing issues of the present, we must plan
responsibly for the future,” said Mayor Farrell. “This budget will ensure that the next
generation of San Franciscans has a robust public transit system, infrastructure that is
seismically-stable and a library system that fully supports their needs.”
 
The May 1 budget is released every two years and supports the work of 12 City departments,
including the City’s four enterprise departments—San Francisco Municipal Transportation
Agency, the Port of San Francisco, the San Francisco Public Utilities Commission and the San
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


Muni’s light-rail fleet, strengthen the Embarcadero Seawall and renovate San Francisco’s public 


libraries. 


 


“While it is important that we address the pressing issues of the present, we must plan 


responsibly for the future,” said Mayor Farrell. “This budget will ensure that the next generation 


of San Franciscans has a robust public transit system, infrastructure that is seismically-stable and 


a library system that fully supports their needs.”  


 


The May 1 budget is released every two years and supports the work of 12 City departments, 


including the City’s four enterprise departments—San Francisco Municipal Transportation 


Agency, the Port of San Francisco, the San Francisco Public Utilities Commission and the San 


Francisco International Airport.  


 


Incorporated in the May 1 Budget are many projects over the next two years that are funded 


outside of the budget process, through supplemental appropriations and the Municipal 


Transportation Agency’s (SFMTA) capital budget. The May 1 proposal is the first step toward 


creating a balanced budget, and will be followed by the full budget on June 1, which will include 


spending plans supported by the General Fund. 


 


Mayor Farrell’s May 1 budget includes $8.2 billion in revenues and expenditures over the next 


two years. It will enable more than $3.2 billion in capital investments, including $135 million in 


combined operating and capital investments to purchase 40 new light-rail cars for Muni and $95 


million for bike, pedestrian and traffic calming measures.  


 


The budget also includes $20 million to fully fund the renovation of the Mission branch public 


library, $11 million for new a ferry landing in Mission Bay and $6.35 million for seismic 


improvements for the Embarcadero Seawall, in anticipation of the $425 million bond measure to 


strengthen the waterfront that is slated to go before voters in November.  
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“San Francisco’s waterfront is a backbone for the regional transportation system, an iconic 


destination, and world renowned for its beautiful public open space, restaurants, family 


museums, attractions and more,” said Port of San Francisco Executive Director Elaine Forbes. “I 


want to thank our City leadership for prioritizing the funding for the Embarcadero Seawall and 


the Mission Bay Ferry Landing, infrastructure that will ensure a vibrant and safe waterfront for 


our future generations.” 


 


In addition to the public transit and infrastructure improvements, the Mayor’s May 1 budget 


includes funding plans to support the renovation and expansion of terminals at the San Francisco 


International Airport and investments to help with the citywide rollout of CleanPowerSF, a clean 


energy program overseen by the San Francisco Public Utilities Commission. 


 


“CleanPowerSF is already bringing cleaner and more renewable energy to more than 80,000 San 


Francisco residents and businesses,” said SFPUC General Manager Harlan Kelly. “This 


significant investment will help the SFPUC expand CleanPowerSF citywide and further reduce 


our City’s carbon footprint, which is key to slowing the impacts of climate change. As a City, we 


are committed to making cleaner, greener energy available to all of San Francisco.” 


 


Mayor Farrell will continue to work with the Board of Supervisors, community organizations, 


residents and businesses to help develop the June 1 budget. 


 


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
creating a balanced budget, and will be followed by the full budget on June 1, which will
include spending plans supported by the General Fund.
 
Mayor Farrell’s May 1 budget includes $8.2 billion in revenues and expenditures over the next
two years. It will enable more than $3.2 billion in capital investments, including $135 million
in combined operating and capital investments to purchase 40 new light-rail cars for Muni and
$95 million for bike, pedestrian and traffic calming measures.
 
The budget also includes $20 million to fully fund the renovation of the Mission branch public
library, $11 million for new a ferry landing in Mission Bay and $6.35 million for seismic
improvements for the Embarcadero Seawall, in anticipation of the $425 million bond measure
to strengthen the waterfront that is slated to go before voters in November.
 
“San Francisco’s waterfront is a backbone for the regional transportation system, an iconic
destination, and world renowned for its beautiful public open space, restaurants, family
museums, attractions and more,” said Port of San Francisco Executive Director Elaine Forbes.
“I want to thank our City leadership for prioritizing the funding for the Embarcadero Seawall
and the Mission Bay Ferry Landing, infrastructure that will ensure a vibrant and safe
waterfront for our future generations.”
 
In addition to the public transit and infrastructure improvements, the Mayor’s May 1 budget
includes funding plans to support the renovation and expansion of terminals at the San
Francisco International Airport and investments to help with the citywide rollout of
CleanPowerSF, a clean energy program overseen by the San Francisco Public Utilities
Commission.
 
“CleanPowerSF is already bringing cleaner and more renewable energy to more than 80,000
San Francisco residents and businesses,” said SFPUC General Manager Harlan Kelly. “This
significant investment will help the SFPUC expand CleanPowerSF citywide and further
reduce our City’s carbon footprint, which is key to slowing the impacts of climate change. As
a City, we are committed to making cleaner, greener energy available to all of San Francisco.”
 
Mayor Farrell will continue to work with the Board of Supervisors, community organizations,
residents and businesses to help develop the June 1 budget.
 

###
 
 
 
 
 



From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
To: Aaron Jon Hyland - HPC; Andrew Wolfram (andrew@tefarch.com); Black, Kate (CPC); Diane Matsuda; Ellen

Johnck - HPC; Jonathan Pearlman; Richard S. E. Johns
Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: Rehearing Request for Appeal No. 18-035 (Pioneer Monument)
Date: Monday, April 30, 2018 9:41:27 AM
Attachments: Early Days Rehearing Request 04-27-18 FINAL BRIEF (EXECUTED).pdf

Exhibits to Brief 04-27-18.pdf

 
 
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
 
From: Teague, Corey (CPC) 
Sent: Saturday, April 28, 2018 12:15 PM
To: BoardofAppeals (PAB); Cantara, Gary (BOA); Rosenberg, Julie (BOA)
Cc: Cummings, Allison (ART); RUIZ-ESQUIDE, ANDREA (CAT); CURRY, LAUREN (CAT); Patterson, Kate
(ART); Frye, Tim (CPC); Ionin, Jonas (CPC); SKELLEN, LAUREN (CAT); JENSEN, KRISTEN (CAT)
Subject: Rehearing Request for Appeal No. 18-035 (Pioneer Monument)
 
Board of Appeals,
Attached is a PDF version of the HPC’s and Art Commission’s joint, which was filed yesterday. Please
let me know if you have any questions. Thanks.
 
Corey A. Teague, AICP, LEED AP
Principal Planner, *Acting Zoning Administrator
 
San Francisco Planning Department
1650 Mission Street, Suite 400, San Francisco, CA 94103
Direct: 415.575.9081 | www.sfplanning.org 
San Francisco Property Information Map
 
*The Zoning Administrator is on leave from February to the end of May. I am
Acting Zoning Administrator during that time. I appreciate your patience as I work
to respond to all emails in a reasonable amount of time.
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Apri127, 2018


Board of Appeals
City and County of San Francisco
1650 Mission Street, Suite 304
San Francisco, California 94103


Re: Appeal No. 18-035 REHEARING REQUEST
Subject Property: Fulton Street Right of Way (Removal to storage of the
bronze "Early Days" sculptural group from
the James Lick Pioneer Monument)


Dear Members of the Board of Appeals:


Together, the Arts Commission and the Historic Preservation Commission ("HPC")


respectfully request that the Board of Appeals (the "Board") rehear appeal number 18-035, regarding


issuance of a Certificate of Appropriateness ("COA"), HPC Motion No. 0331, Case No. 2017-015491


to remove the "Early Days" portion of the Pioneer Monument ("Early Days"). The Board should


rehear this case because (1) this is an extraordinary case and a reversal of the Board's decision will


prevent the manifest injustice to the community that will occur if the Early Days portion remains on


site, and (2) there are new and different facts and circumstances that, based on Board member


comments, if known at the time, could have changed the outcome of the original hearing.


As a threshold matter, Early Days is part of a City-owned statue that the San Francisco Charter


places under the Arts Commission's jurisdiction, and the statue is located on City property. The subject


of the appeal, then, is a matter of government speech. It is not a question of free speech that may


infringe on individual First Amendment rights.


I. This is an exceptional case and a reversal will prevent a manifest injustice to the community,


warranting that the Board rehear the appeal.


First, the Board's decision places the Board at odds with the elected representatives of the







people of San Francisco. The elected representatives have expressed community values here, in


particular in avoiding public sponsorship of monuments in the seat of City government that are racially


offensive in their treatment of minority groups, including the Native American community. While the


Board seemed to consider how to measure significant community concern as an important factor in its


decision, the Board misapplied measurements of community values.


The Board may have been unaware that, on February 9, 2018, the Mayor signed into law Board


of Supervisors Ordinance No. 16-18, amending the S.F. Administrative Code to declare the second


Monday in October to be Indigenous Peoples Day rather than Columbus Day. (Administrative Code


sec. 16.4; copy attached as Exhibit A.) In its findings, the ordinance references "the near decimation


of the [Muwekma Ohlone] tribe due to European migration" (sec. 16.4(a)(1)); explains that "San


Francisco has a responsibility to oppose the systematic racism towards indigenous peoples in the


United States" (sec. 16.4(a)(2)); notes further that "San Francisco recognizes the historic


discrimination and violence inflicted upon indigenous peoples in the United States, including their


forced removal from ancestral lands, and the deliberate and systematic destruction of their


communities and culture" (sec. 16.8(a)(3)); and, finally, recognizes that an important purpose served


by Indigenous Peoples Day is "to condemn the atrocities that were committed against [indigenous


peoples]" (sec. 16(a)(4)).


When the Mayor and the Board of Supervisors speak, through an official enachnent such as


Ordinance No. 16-18, they express the values of the community as their elected representatives.


Further, while Early Days was not then before the Board of Supervisors, the community concerns


behind enacting Ordinance No. 16-18 reflect the concerns the public expressed here and that have been


at the forefront of the Arts Commission's decision to remove the sculpture from public view.


Also, the Mayor issued a statement immediately following the Board's decision saying that he
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was "embarrassed" by the Board's decision and calling for "a resolution to remove the statue from the


Pioneer Monument immediately." (See Exhibit B.) And, members of the Board of Supervisors swiftly


introduced a resolution urging the Board to rehear this appeal and reverse its decision. (See Exhibit


C.) The resolution is, at the time of this submission, on calendar for immediate adoption. (See Exhibit


D.)


Second, this appeal arises in the broader context of a national examination of the naming of


public buildings, streets, and schools and the placement of statues and monuments relating to historical


figures and events that many people now see as racist, highly offensive and deeply hurtful to


minorities who have suffered so much pain rooted in that history. Communities across the country


have decided to remove public monuments glorifying leaders of the confederacy because the painful


messages they convey as tributes to slavery outweigh their value as works of art or historical


references. And even if these statues were to remain with an accompanying plaque or pamphlet


explaining that they are under today's values and community mores racist and offensive to minorities,


the power of art is such that explanatory words can only do so much to salve the pain the art causes.


And the harm is magnified when it appears the government, through its ownership of the art, is


sponsoring that hurtful message.


Bringing the point home, the City cannot relieve the pain that Native American and other


community members feel when they pass by Early Days by telling them, in effect, "Don't be hurt, it's


just history," or "Sorry this hurts your feelings, but we have to place this in your way, in this prominent


public square, because it's history," or "Don't be hurt, this nicely designed and well-worded plaque


accompanying the sculpture explains that it is not meant to glorify the events portrayed." In a city that


prides itself on sensitivity to the pain and civil rights violations that have been inflicted on minority


groups over the course of American history, including in our state and city, the Board, in evaluating the
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hurt-versus-history calculus as it relates to public art, may not have appreciated the pain that a statue in


our public square causes some of the residents in our community.


Also, the community members who have advocated for removing Early Days are not isolated


ideologues or members of a fringe organization. They are an intrinsic part of the diversity that this City


values. And there is no equivalency here, moral, legal or otherwise, between removing Early Days as


the Arts Commission seeks to do here, and, for example, a hypothetical situation removing the City's


Holocaust Memorial from the grounds of the Legion of Honor at the request of the Ku Klux Klan.


Here we must recognize and value the pain our own City government has caused to Native


Americans through City-owned art in a location that most symbolizes the heart of City government:


the Civic Center Plaza area. A rehearing will give the Board an opportunity to reverse its decision,


rectifying this manifest injustice to the community.


Third, unlike most appeals the Board hears, the particular facts and circumstances here present


an issue of whether the Board's decision is consistent with the City's Charter. The Arts Commission


followed the requirements of Article 10, Sections 1005 and 1006 of the Planning Code because the


project involved work on a structure in a historic district. Arts Commission staff had obtained permits


from the Department of Public Works ("DPW") for the work required to remove the sculptural group.


But removing Early Days presents a potential conflict between the Arts Commission's core Charter


functions and authority, on the one hand, and the requirement for a COA issued by the HPC, on the


other.


Charter Section 5.103 provides in relevant part that the Arts Commission shall:


Approve the design and location of all works of art before they are acquired, transferred
or sold by the City and County, or are placed upon or removed from City and County property,
or are altered in any way; maintain and keep an inventory of works of art owned by the City
and County; and maintain the works of art owned by the City and County.


As this language makes clear, approving the removal of works of art from City properly and alteration
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of art in the City's collection, as is the case here, are core Charter functions of the Arts Commission.


The HPC, by issuing the COA, avoided the Charter conflict. If it is possible for the Board to do


so, it should too. If the Board does not. reverse its decision, the Arts Commission could find that the


Board is preventing it from carrying out its core Charter functions and that the Arts Commission has


the authority under the Charter to proceed with removing the portion of the statue as it has proposed


and as the HPC has approved.


The Board's decision is exceptional in one final sense. To our knowledge, it is the first time


that the Board has simultaneously displaced the decisions of both the Charter body responsible for


historic preservation and the Charter body responsible for public art. The decision is an unusually


broad attempt to exercise the Board's authority, which, along with the other considerations outlined


above, are grounds for the hoard to reconsider and reverse its decision.


II. New facts and circumstances that were not presented at the appeal hearing also warrant a


rehearing.


In addition to supporting a rehearing based on extraordinary circumstances and preventing a


manifest injustice, Board of Supervisors Ordinance No. 16-18 renaming the Columbus Day holiday as


Indigenous Peoples Day, and the legislative findings in that ordinance, as well as the Mayor's critical


statements after the Board made its decision, and the introduction of a Board of Supervisors resolution


urging the reversal of the Board's decision (as described in Part I above), are new facts and


circumstances warranting a rehearing.


These new facts and circumstances were not considered at the hearing of this appeal, because


the issues to which they pertain —whether the HPC's decision granting the COA was inconsistent with


its past decisions, and whether it had improperly applied the Secretary of Interior Standards for the


Treatment of Historic Properties ("Standards") —were raised only by the Board's statement of its


San Frascisca~~~~~~~~ sanfrartcisco g ~
artsconsrn~ssion Pa e 5







decision and there was no deliberation or opportunity for the HPC to refute those assertions at the


hearing.


Section 1006.6(b) of the Planning Code states that, when the HPC reviews a COA application,


the "proposed work shall comply with the Secretary of the Interior's Standards for the Treatment of


Historic Properties for individual landmarks and contributors within historic districts, as well as any


applicable guidelines, local interpretations, bulletins, or other policies." The Standards are a list often


principles authored by the National Park Service and applied in many forms by municipalities


throughout the United States. The Standards are not prescriptive and may be interpreted to address


specific circumstances at the local level, such as property type, site conditions, and practical and


economic feasibility. Depending on the scope of a project, not all ten principles may apply. Review for


conformance with the Standards is therefore limited to only those applicable. Application of the


Standards is also influenced by the significance of the property under review. For instance, the


Standards are generally applied through afine-grain lens for a single property that is individually


designated as a landmark and a broader lens for a district that is made up of many properties and


features, as in this case -- an important distinction the Board may not have appreciated. This is because


the district does not rely on any single property to demonstrate its significance. Rather, it is the


collection of ~Zroperties as a whole that justify a historic district's distinction. (See United States


Department of the Interior, National Park Service, The Secretary of the Interior Standards for the


Treatment of Historic Properties, with Guidelines for Preserving, Rehabilitating, Restoring and


Reconstructing Historic Buildings, available online at https://www.nps.gov/tps/standards/treatment-


guidelines-2017.pdf.)


The HPC applies the Secretary of the Interior's Rehabilitation Standards for all work to


properties within its purview. In pertinent part, the Rehabilitation Standards state, "Rehabilitation is
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defined as the act or process of making possible a compatible use for a property through repair,


alterations, and additions while preserving those portions or features which convey its historical or


cultural values." (See National Park Service, The Secretary of the Interior Standards for


Rehabilitation, Introduction to the Standards, attached as Exhibit E) Standard 2 specifically states,


"The historic character of a property shall be retained and preserved. The removal of historic materials


or alteration of features and spaces that characterize a property shall be avoided." While the flexibility


of the Standards can be the subject of discussion and sometimes confusion, the Rehabilitation


Standards do not prohibit alterations to historic properties. The Rehabilitation Standards provide


guidance on how historic properties can change and can be altered while retaining the features that


make them distinct and worth preserving. (Id.)


An absolutist reading of Standard 2 would suggest that the removal or alteration of any


character-defining feature cannot meet the intent of this Standard. However, in practice, and as


supported by the guidance from the National Park Service cited above, this is not the case.


Conformance with Standard 2 does not dictate an absolutist application of the standard. Compliance


may be achieved if the proposed alterations balance the retention of historic materials with compatible


changes. Consider, for example, the alterations that the HPC approved in 2006 to the New Mission


Theater, an individual landmark. (See HPC Resolution and Case Report, attached as Exhibit F.) The


project involved exterior and interior alterations and a change in use from asingle-screen theater into a


five-screen theater/restaurant. While the landmark designating ordinance emphasized the theater's


architectural significance as asingle-screen movie theater by master architect Timothy Pfleuger, the


interior of the main auditorium was converted into five theaters by constructing new interior walls


between the main auditorium and balcony levels. With regard to Standard 2, the HPC determined, in
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pertinent part:


Although the volume of the auditorium would be reduced by the extension of the lower balcony
and the insertion of the new theaters, the project maintains a sense of the auditoriums triple-
height space and also retains important characteristics of this interior, ... Within the lower
balcony theaters, the existing historic ceiling would be mothballed, repaired and encapsulated
behind a new ceiling, thus preserving original historic materials. Other alterations ... appear
to be appropriate, since this alteration is reversible and would not impact the historic
character of this space.


Taking into account the overall intent of the proposed project, the desire to reactivate a long-


vacant and derelict landmark structure, and its precedents in applying the Standards, the HPC issued


the COA for the proposed alterations. Afterwards, the project received the 20% Federal Rehabilitation


Tax Credit administered by the National Park Service — a financial incentive granted only to projects


that comply with the Standards. (See Exhibit F.) The fact that both the HPC and the National Park


Service found the removal and alteration of the lower balcony's features to be in conformance with the


Standards illustrates that character-defining features of a landmark or landmark district may be altered


and removed, if the historic character of the overall resource is preserved. Compliance with the


Standards is, in sum, acase-specific and context-specific evaluation, and is not governed by an


absolutist rejection of alterations.


Here, in the COA application regarding removal of the Early Days statue, the resource


identified was the Civic Center Historic District as a whole. The resource at issue was not the Early


Days statue, nor the larger Pioneer Monument, which is not an individual landmark, but just one of the


many contributing features of a district that includes many other prominent features such as the Civic


Center, the Asian Art Museum, the War Memorial Complex, and the Bill Graham Civic Auditorium.


(See Civic Center Historic District Cultural Landscape Inventory, available online at


http://commissions.sfplanning.org/hpcpackets/2014.1383U.pdf , p. 74, describing the Pioneer


Monument as a "small feature" and a character defining feature of the district.) In a district of


superlative examples of art and architecture, no particular feature can properly be evaluated in
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isolation. Instead, all contributing features, and their respective character-defining features, must be


seen in the context of the Civic Center Historic District as a whole.


The Board's conclusion that the HPC's issuance of the COA was inconsistent with past practice


is not supported by evidence in the administrative record and is contradicted by the City's past


practices. The HPC approved the following COA applications from 2012 2017, for different projects


proposing alterations to the Civic Center Historic District. These approvals show that the HPC has


consistently applied the Standards, based on its careful evaluation of each proposed project and its


relationship to the features the district, and that there is nothing inconsistent about its issuance of the


COA here.


Veterans Memorial in War Memorial Courtyard (Case No. 2012.0361A; HPC hearing date


August 15, 2012. [See HPC Resolution and Case Report, attached as Exhibit G].) The proposed


project involved the installation of a Veterans memorial, ADA curb cuts, bench seating, and some re-


grading and reconfiguration of the lawn, paving and hedges of the Thomas Church Garden located in


the Memorial Court between the Veterans Building and the Opera Building. The Memorial Court is a


contributing feature of the Civic Center Historic District. In order to accommodate the memorial and


to meet circulation and accessibility requirements, a portion of the historic hedges, curbing and


walkway paving at the east end of the courtyard was removed and reconfigured. With regard to


Standard 2, the HPC determined,


The proposed alterations maintain nearly all of the existing historic fabric with the exception
of the removal and reconfiguration of curbing and hedges at the east end of the site. The
project also includes work that is restorative in nature, such as removal of the non-historic
hedge that currently blocks the west entrance into the courtyard. The remaining work is
additive in nature and does not destroy historic materials, features or spatial relationships that
characterize the property... Therefore, the proposed project complies with Rehabilitation
Standard 2.


In other words, the HPC found it appropriate to introduce alterations to the site that altered


approximately 20°/a of the character-defining concrete curbing, paving and hedges, and maintained the
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historic character of the Memorial Court and the surrounding Civic Center Historic District.


Civic Center Plaza Playgrounds (Case No. 2015-005727COA. HPC hearing date June 15,


2015 [See HPC Resolution and Case Report, attached as Exhibit A].) The project involved the


replacement of the two existing playgrounds at the Joseph L. Alioto Performing Arts Piazza (aka Civic


Center Plaza), including new play equipment, plantings, site furnishings, and lighting. Civic Center


Plaza, its configuration, use, materials, and axial relationship to its context is a contributing feature to


the Civic Center Historic District. This project within Civic Center Plaza was found to not alter


features or spaces that characterize the district because the new playgrounds featured a cohesive


materials palette in neutral colors, and landscaping that was found to be consistent with the character


of the district. The HPC's action on this COA illustrates the importance of the overall character-


defining visual axial relationships.


Asian Art Museum Expansion (Case No. 2016-016257COA; HPC hearing date July 19, 2017


[See HPC Resolution and Case Report, attached as Exhibit I].) This project proposed alterations to the


exterior and interior of the Asian Art Museum, a contributory element to the Civic Center Historic


District. In the exterior, the construction of a one story vertical addition with a programmed roof


terrace on top of an existing one story conservation studio along Hyde Street was proposed to create a


large, clear-span exhibit hall. Interior alterations included a new doorway within the large, arched


window in Samsung Hall. Samsung Hall's features are character-defining to the building and the Civic


Center Historic District. With regard to Standard 2, the HPC determined,


The historic character of the former library building will be preserved, as the exterior scope is
limited to removal of brick and glass wall sections on secondary elevations that are not
character-defining to the subject property or the surrounding district. Interior work will also
not damage character-defining features of significant interior spaces. Therefore the project
complies with Standard 2.


Specifically, the HPC agreed with staff's analysis that the alteration and removal of historic
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materials from acharacter-defining window in Samsung Hall to create a doorway did not result in


damage to the historic feature. It found that while historic materials would be removed, the retention of


the remainder of the historic elements and the use of compatible materials were acceptable alterations,


in conformance with the Standards.


Bill Graham Civic Auditorium/Exposition Auditorium Public Art Installation (Case No.


2017-011911COA; HPC hearing date December 6, 2017 [See HPC Resolution and Case Report,


attached as Exhibit J].) The project proposed to install aneon-lit artwork spanning the brick portion of


the western (Polk Street) facade and a small portion of the southern (Hayes Street) facade of the Bill


Graham Civic Auditorium. a contributor to the Civic Center Historic District. With regard to Standard


2, the HPC determined that,


The historic character of the property would be retained with no distinctive materials,
architectural elements, or spaces.that characterize the property being altered. Although all
exterior elevations of the subject building are finished, the majority of Revival style
ornamentation is located on the north (Grove Street) facade. The remaining elevations are clad
with face brick and simplified water table, string coursing, frieze, and cornice detail to
articulate the overall tri partite arrangement of the subject building.


In its approval of the COA, the HPC determined that the attachments required by the proposed


art installation to the finished, public-facing elevations of Polk and Hayes Street were reversible and


would not damage historic masonry.


The COA cases discussed above illustrate that the HPC's decision to approve the issuance of


the COA in this case, to remove the "Early Days" assemblage from the Pioneer Monument, a


contributing feature of the Civic Center Historic District, was in conformance with the Standards,


specifically Standard 2, and consistent with its review of other COAs for other properties within its


purview, both within and outside the Civic Center Historic District. The proposed alteration to the


District is reversible, is limited to a small contributing feature of the District, and does not affect the
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other character defining features of the District, nor the axial relationship between the Pioneer


Monument and City Hall.


For the reasons explained in this petition,. the Arts Commission and the Historic Preservation


Commission respectfully request that the Board grant a rehearing of appeal number 18-035.


Respectfully submitted,


Tom DeCaigny
Director of Cultural Affairs


San Francisco Arts Commission
401 Van Ness, Suite 325
San Francisco, CA 94102-4570


~c`it'~t111IP,~,' .~►tt~t., san francisc4
arts t.amm~ssion


Jonas P. Ionin
Director of Commission Affairs


San Francisco Planning Department
1650 Mission Street, Suite 400
San Francisco, CA 94103-2479
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
Subject: FW: Commission Update for the Week of April 30, 2018
Date: Monday, April 30, 2018 9:41:25 AM
Attachments: Commission Weekly Update 4.30.18.doc

 
 
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
 
From: Tsang, Francis 
Sent: Monday, April 30, 2018 9:14 AM
To: Tsang, Francis
Subject: Commission Update for the Week of April 30, 2018
 
Good morning.
Please find a memo attached that outlines items before commissions and boards for this week.
Let me know if you have any questions or concerns. 
Francis

Francis Tsang
Deputy Chief of Staff
Office of Mayor Mark Farrell
City and County of San Francisco
415.554.6467 | francis.tsang@sfgov.org
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To: 

Mayor’s Senior Staff

From: 

Francis Tsang

Date: 

April 30, 2018

Re: 

Commission Update for the Week of April 30, 2018

This memorandum summarizes and highlights agenda items before commissions and boards for the week of April 30, 2018. 

Airport (Tuesday, May 1, 9AM) - CANCELLED

Community Investment & Infrastructure (Tuesday, May 1, 1PM)


Action Items


· Authorizing the Executive Director to enter into a Memorandum of Understanding with the City and County of San Francisco Controller’s Office for financial systems, accounting, and audit support, in an amount not to exceed $245,000 for Fiscal Year 2018-2019

· Approving an Ordinance Levying Special Taxes within the Successor Agency to the Redevelopment Agency of the City and County of San Francisco Community Facilities District No. 9 (HPS2/CP Public Facilities and Services)

· Approving a Budget for the period July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019 and authorizing the Executive Director to submit the Budget and Interim Budget to the Mayor’s Office and the Board of Supervisors


Entertainment (Tuesday, May 1, 530PM)

Discussion Only


· Update on the hiring process for the Executive Director of the Entertainment Commission position. 

Action Items


· Hearing and Possible Action regarding applications for permits under the jurisdiction of the Entertainment Commission

Consent Agenda:


· EC-1438 – D’Angelica, Jon, District, 216 Townsend St., Limited Live Performance Permit.


· EC-1441 – Stearns, Esther, Stagecoach Greens, 1379 4th St., Mechanical Amusement Device Permit.


Regular Agenda:


· EC-1439 – Karajah, Kamel, El Valenciano, 1153 Valencia St., Place of Entertainment Permit.


· EC-1440 – Sheehy, Brian, Tradition, 441 Jones St., Place of Entertainment Permit.


· Discussion and Possible Action to adopt written comments and/or recommendations to be submitted by the Acting Director to the Planning Department and/or Department of Building Inspection regarding noise issues for proposed residential and/or hotel/motel projects per Chapter 116 of the of the Administrative Code.

Regular Agenda:


· 5 3rd Street, Bl/Lot: 3707/057, Discussion and possible action to adopt written comments and/or recommendations regarding noise issues for the proposed hotel project at 5 3rd Street, which is located within 300 feet of Hakkasan, Dada Bar, Local Edition, and Hawthorn, all permitted Places of Entertainment.


Health (Tuesday, May 1, 4PM)

Discussion Only


· SFDPH NON-HOSPITAL EMPLOYEE RECOGNITION AWARDS

· 2018 AND BEYOND TRANSITION OF CANNABIS PERMITTING FROM THE SFDPH TO THE OFFICE OF CANNABIS


Action Items


· MAY 2018 CONTRACTS REPORT


· REQUEST FOR APPROVAL OF A NEW CONTRACT WITH THE AMERICAN MEDICAL ASSOCIATION TO PROVIDE ANNUAL ACCESS TO CURRENT PROCEDURAL TERMINOLOGY (CPT®) CODES PRODUCED BY THE AMERICAN MEDICAL ASSOCIATION FOR USE IN THE NEW ELECTRONIC HEALTH RECORD IN THE AMOUNT OF $598,315, WHICH INCLUDES A 12% CONTINGENCY THE TERM OF THE CONTRACT IS FOR THE PERIOD MARCH 31, 2018 TO FEBRUARY 28, 2023. (60 MONTHS).


· REQUEST FOR APPROVAL OF A NEW CONTRACT WITH HEALTHCARE IT LEADERS LLC, TO PROVIDE AS-NEEDED IT BACKFILL, SUPPLEMENTAL STAFFING, CONSULTANTS, PROJECT MANAGERS, OR PROJECT LEADS FOR APPLICATIONS, ACTIVE DIRECTORY, SERVICE DESK, AND/OR SERVICE DESK TECHNICIANS IN SUPPORT OF THE ELECTRONIC HEALTH RECORD PROJECT IN THE AMOUNT OF $9,300,000. THE TERM OF THE CONTRACT IS FOR THE PERIOD MAY 1, 2018 THROUGH JULY 31, 2020 (27 MONTHS).


· REQUEST FOR APPROVAL OF A NEW CONTRACT WITH HURON CONSULTING GROUP INC. TO PROVIDE AS-NEEDED IT BACKFILL, SUPPLEMENTAL STAFFING, CONSULTANTS, PROJECT MANAGERS, OR PROJECT LEADS FOR APPLICATIONS, ACTIVE DIRECTORY, SERVICE DESK, AND/OR SERVICE DESK TECHNICIANS IN SUPPORT OF THE ELECTRONIC HEALTH RECORD PROJECT IN THE AMOUNT OF $9,300,000. THE TERM OF THE CONTRACT IS FOR THE PERIOD MAY 1, 2018 THROUGH JULY 31, 2020 (27 MONTHS).


· REQUEST FOR APPROVAL OF A NEW CONTRACT WITH OPTIMUM HEALTHCARE IT, LLC, TO PROVIDE AS-NEEDED IT BACKFILL, SUPPLEMENTAL STAFFING, CONSULTANTS, PROJECT MANAGERS, OR PROJECT LEADS FOR APPLICATIONS, ACTIVE DIRECTORY, SERVICE DESK, AND/OR SERVICE DESK TECHNICIANS IN SUPPORT OF THE ELECTRONIC HEALTH RECORD PROJECT IN THE AMOUNT OF $9,300, 000. THE TERM OF THE CONTRACT IS FOR THE PERIOD MAY 1, 2018 THROUGH JULY 31, 2020 (27 MONTHS).

Municipal Transportation Agency (Tuesday, May 1, 1PM)


Discussion Only


· SFMTA Branding


· Update on Vision Zero

· Presentation and discussion regarding the Shared Electric Moped Parking Permit Program.

Action Items


· Approving the following traffic modifications:

· ESTABLISH – TOW AWAY NO STOPPING ANY TIME − Sloat Boulevard, south side, from 33 feet to 100 feet west of Everglade Drive; Sloat Boulevard, south side, from Lakeshore Plaza Drive to 20 feet easterly; Sloat Boulevard, south side, from 95 feet to 115 feet east of Lakeshore Plaza Drive; Sloat Boulevard, north side, from 37th Avenue to 100 feet easterly.


· ESTABLISH – BUS ZONE − Sloat Blvd., north side, from 65 feet to 145 feet west of 36th Ave.


· ESTABLISH – YELLOW LOADING ZONE, 6AM – 6PM, MONDAY – SATURDAY – Sloat Boulevard, south side, from 20 feet to 95 feet east of Lakeshore Plaza Drive.


· ESTABLISH – NO RIGHT TURN – 11 AM to 8 PM, EXCEPT RESIDENTS OF 1300 LOMBARD sign on northbound Hyde Street. 

· Making environmental review findings; amending the Transportation Code, Division II, Section 601 to expand the hours of bus and taxi only lanes on Mission Street between 1st and Beale streets eastbound (inbound) and Mission Street between Main and 1st streets westbound (outbound) to “All Times” and add or amend pre-existing transit-only lanes in other locations; and approving parking and traffic modifications as follows:


· ESTABLISH - BUS & TAXI ONLY LANE, Mission Street, eastbound, from 1st to Beale streets; Mission Street, westbound, from Main to 1st streets.


· ESTABLISH - TOW-AWAY NO STOPPING ANYTIME, Mission Street, north side, from Fremont to Beale streets; Mission Street, south side, from Fremont Street to 69 feet easterly; Mission Street, south side, from Beale Street to 22 feet westerly.


· ESTABLISH - BUS AND TAXI ONLY LANE, Clay Street, eastbound, from Kearny to Sansome streets 3 to 6 p.m. Monday-Friday.


· ESTABLISH - BUS ONLY LANE, Pine Street, westbound, from Battery to Sansome streets, 3 to 7 p.m. Monday-Friday.


· ESTABLISH - BUS AND TAXI ONLY LANE, Sacramento Street, westbound, from Drumm to Front streets.


· ESTABLISH - MUNI ONLY LANE, Duboce Avenue, eastbound, from Fillmore to Church streets.

· Authorizing the Director to file a claim with the Metropolitan Transportation Commission for allocation of operating assistance from Transportation Development Act, State Transit Assistance, AB1107 One-Half Cent Sales Tax, and Regional Measure 2 funds for Fiscal Year 2019 to support the operating budget.

· Authorizing the Director to accept and expend up to $463,238 in Fiscal Year 2019 Transportation Development Act, Article 3 funds for Vision Zero Bike and Pedestrian Improvements. 

· Approving an amendment to the Memorandum of Understanding between the San Francisco Municipal Transportation Agency and the Transport Workers Union, Local 200 to modify the seniority provisions for Classification 9153 Transportation Controllers who transferred to that classification.

· Executing Contract Amendment No. 3 to SFMTA Contract No. CS-162, Professional Support Services for the Job Order Contracting Program, with The Gordian Group, to retroactively extend the term of the agreement to April 30, 2019 at no additional cost.

· Amending the Transportation Code, Division II, to establish a pilot Powered Scooter Share Permit Program for 24 months, requiring a permit issued by the Director of Transportation, establishing a fee for the issuance of the permit, establishing administrative penalties for failure to obtain a permit or violation of permit requirements, providing a procedure for the assessment and collection of administrative penalties for permit violations or parking or leaving standing an unpermitted Powered Scooter subject to the pilot Powered Scooter Share Permit Program on a sidewalk, street, or other public right-of-way, and making non-substantive corrections in Division II.

· Consenting to the proposed revisions to the Candlestick Point Hunters Point Shipyard Phase 2 Transportation Plan and Hunters Point Shipyard Phase 2 Development Infrastructure Plan, as these documents relate to matters under the SFMTA’s jurisdiction, and the transportation-related mitigation and improvement measures, and adopting findings under the California Environmental Quality Act. 

· CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - Existing Litigation: Paul Toan vs. CCSF, Superior Ct. #CGC17561876 filed on 6/15/17 and Fong Toan vs. CCSF, Superior Ct. #CGC17559415 filed on 10/13/17 for $990,000 (Closed Session)

Aging and Adult Services (Wednesday, May 2, 930AM)

Discussion Only


· CLF 6 Month Report and Annual Plan Update

Action Items


· Review and approval of Dignity Fund Community Needs Assessment.

· Review and approval of FY 2017/2018 Area Plan Update for submission to the California Department of Aging.

· Review and approval of FY 18.19 CDA-122 Area Plan Budget, associated contract AP-1819-06, and all subsequent amendments.

· Requesting authorization to enter into a new contract agreement with San Francisco State University for the provision of consulting services for a community cultural center for adults with disabilities during the period of May 1, 2018 through March 31, 2019; in the amount of $99,842 plus a 10% contingency for a total amount not to exceed $109,826.

· Requesting authorization to enter into a new grant agreement with San Francisco Village for the provision of the Village Model during the period of July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2020; in the amount of $629,000 plus a 10% contingency for a total grant amount not to exceed $691,900.

· Requesting authorization to enter into a new grant agreement with NEXT Village San Francisco for the provision of the Village Model during the period of July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2020; in the amount of $215,124 plus a 10% contingency for a total grant amount not to exceed $236,636.

· Requesting authorization to enter into a new grant agreement with Golden Gate Senior Services for the provision of the Community Bridge Model during the period of July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2020; in the amount of $307,500 plus a 10% contingency for a total grant amount not to exceed $338,250.

· Requesting authorization to enter into a new grant agreement with Community Living Campaign for the provision of the Cayuga Community Connector Program during the period of July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2020; in the amount of $218,450 plus a 10% contingency for a total grant amount not to exceed $240,295.


· Requesting authorization to enter into a new grant agreement with AIDS Housing Alliance San Francisco for the provision of limited term housing subsidy for seniors and adults with disabilities during the period of March 1, 2018 to June 30, 2019, in the amount of $375,000 plus a 10% contingency for a total grant amount not to exceed $412,500.

· Requesting authorization to enter into a new grant agreement with Self-Help for the Elderly for the provision of limited term housing subsidy for seniors and adults with disabilities during the period of March 1, 2018 to June 30, 2019, in the amount of $1,125,000 plus a 10% contingency for a total grant amount not to exceed $1,237,500.

· Requesting authorization to renew grant agreement with Institute on Aging for the provision of the Center for Elderly Suicide Prevention and grief related services program (IOA/CESP) during the period of July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019; in the amount of $305,273 plus a 10% contingency for a total grant amount not to exceed $335,800.

· Requesting authorization to renew grant agreement with Institute on Aging for the provision of the Elder Abuse Forensic Center program (IOA/FC) during the period of July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019; in the amount of $132,249 plus a 10% contingency for a total grant amount not to exceed $145,474.

· Requesting authorization to renew grant agreement with Institute on Aging for the provision of the Elder Abuse Prevention program (IOA/EAP) during the period of July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019; in the amount of $125,347 plus a 10% contingency for a total grant amount not to exceed $137,882.

· Requesting authorization to renew grant agreement with Asian Pacific Islander Legal Outreach for the provision of the Elder Abuse Prevention Services program (APILO/EAPS) during the period of July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019; in the amount of $18,649 plus a 10% contingency for a total grant amount not to exceed $20,514.

· Requesting authorization to renew the contract with Merced Residential Care for the provision of Emergency Bed Placement Services; during the period of July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019; in the amount of $96,000 plus a 10% contingency for a total contract amount not to exceed $105,600.

· Requesting authorization to enter into a new grant agreement with Legal Assistance to the Elderly for the provision of Legal Service Program for Health-Related Law during the period of April 1, 2018 through June 30, 2020; in the amount of $290, 322 plus a 10% contingency for a total amount not to exceed $319, 354.

· Requesting authorization to enter into a new grant agreement with Legal Assistance to the Elderly for the provision of Life Planning Legal Service Program for LGBT Older Adults and Adults with Disabilities during the period of April 1, 2018 through June 30, 2020; in the amount of $177, 509 plus a 10% contingency for a total amount not to exceed $195, 260.

· Requesting authorization to re-new grant agreement with Senior and Disability Action for the provision of the Senior and Disability Empowerment program during the period of July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019; in the amount of $197,102 plus a 10% contingency for a total grant amount not to exceed $216,812. 


· Requesting authorization to re-new grant agreement with Senior and Disability Action for the provision of the Homecare Advocacy program during the period of July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019; in the amount of $102,238 plus a 10% contingency for a total grant amount not to exceed $112,461.

· Requesting authorization to re-new grant agreement with Senior and Disability Action for the provision of the Housing Advocacy and Counseling program during the period of July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019; in the amount of $158,930 plus a 10% contingency for a total grant amount not to exceed $174,823. 


· Requesting authorization to re-new grant agreement with Senior and Disability Action for the provision of the Long Term Care Consumer Rights Advocacy program during the period of July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019; in the amount of $115,689 plus a 10% contingency for a total grant amount not to exceed $127,257.

· Requesting authorization to renew the grant agreement with GLIDE FOUNDATION for the provision of Meal Services and Program Security for Department of Aging and Adult Services Clients; during the period of July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019; in the amount of $1,570,634 plus a 10% contingency for a total grant amount not to exceed $1,727,698.

· Requesting authorization to renew the grant agreement with Shanti Project for the provision of Animal Bonding Services to Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual, and Transgender (LGBT) Seniors and Adults with Disabilities (AWD); during the period of July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2020; in the amount of $570,250 plus a 10% contingency for a total grant amount not to exceed of $627,275.

· Requesting authorization to renew the grant agreement with Shanti Project for the provision of Social Isolation Prevention Services to Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual, and Transgender (LGBT) Seniors and Adults with Disabilities (AWD); during the period of July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2020; in the amount of $672,400 plus a 10% contingency for a total grant amount not to exceed of $739,640.

· Requesting authorization to renew the grant agreement with Alzheimer’s Disease and Related Disorders Association, Inc. for the provision of addressing the needs of Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual, and Transgender (LGBT) Seniors and Adults with Disabilities (AWD) in San Francisco living with Alzheimer’s Disease and related dementias; during the period of July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019; in the amount of $210,125 plus a 10% contingency for a total grant amount not to exceed of $231,137.

· Requesting authorization to enter into a new grant agreement with Bayanihan Equity Center for the provision of Community Services for seniors and adults with disabilities during the period of July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2020; in the amount of $777,668 plus a 10% contingency for a total amount not to exceed of¬ $855,434.

· Requesting authorization to enter into a new grant agreement with Bayview Hunter’s Point Multipurpose Senior Services for the provision of Community Services for seniors and adults with disabilities during the period of July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2020; in the amount of $2,144,026 plus a 10% contingency for a total amount not to exceed of¬ $2,358,428.

· Requesting authorization to enter into a new grant agreement with Bernal Heights Neighborhood Center for the provision of Community Services for seniors and adults with disabilities during the period of July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2020; in the amount of $1,052,196 plus a 10% contingency for a total amount not to exceed of¬ $1,157,415.

· Requesting authorization to enter into a new grant agreement with Catholic Charities for the provision of Community Services for seniors and adults with disabilities during the period of July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2020; in the amount of $1,030,770 plus a 10% contingency for a total amount not to exceed of¬ $1,133,847.

· Requesting authorization to enter into a new grant agreement with Centro Latino de San Francisco, Inc. for the provision of Community Services for seniors and adults with disabilities during the period of July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2020; in the amount of $224,790 plus a 10% contingency for a total amount not to exceed of¬ $247,269.

· Requesting authorization to enter into a new grant agreement with Curry Senior Center for the provision of Community Services for seniors and adults with disabilities during the period of July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2020; in the amount of $468,558 plus a 10% contingency for a total amount not to exceed of¬ $515,413.

· Requesting authorization to enter into a new grant agreement with Episcopal Community Services for the provision of Community Services for seniors and adults with disabilities during the period of July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2020; in the amount of $499,890 plus a 10% contingency for a total amount not to exceed of¬ $549,879.

· Requesting authorization to enter into a new grant agreement with Felton Institute for the provision of Community Services for seniors and adults with disabilities during the period of July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2020; in the amount of $220,632 plus a 10% contingency for a total amount not to exceed of¬ $242,695. (Linda Murley will present the item.)

· HH. Requesting authorization to enter into a new grant agreement with Golden Gate Senior Services for the provision of Community Services for seniors and adults with disabilities during the period of July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2020; in the amount of $931,440 plus a 10% contingency for a total amount not to exceed of¬ $1,024,584.

· Requesting authorization to enter into a new grant agreement with Independent Living Resource Center of San Francisco for the provision of Community Services for seniors and adults with disabilities during the period of July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2020; in the amount of $231,872 plus a 10% contingency for a total amount not to exceed of¬ $255,059.

· Requesting authorization to enter into a new grant agreement with Kimochi, Inc. for the provision of Community Services for seniors and adults with disabilities during the period of July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2020; in the amount of $421,234 plus a 10% contingency for a total amount not to exceed of¬ $463,357.

· Requesting authorization to enter into a new grant agreement with Lighthouse for the Blind and Visually Impaired for the provision of Community Services for seniors and adults with disabilities during the period of July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2020; in the amount of $213,458 plus a 10% contingency for a total amount not to exceed of¬ $234,803.


· Requesting authorization to enter into a new grant agreement with Mission Neighborhood Centers for the provision of Community Services for seniors and adults with disabilities during the period of July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2020; in the amount of $475,380 plus a 10% contingency for a total amount not to exceed of¬ $522,918.

· Requesting authorization to enter into a new grant agreement with On Lok Day Services / 30th Street Senior Center for the provision of Community Services for seniors and adults with disabilities during the period of July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2020; in the amount of $802,716 plus a 10% contingency for a total amount not to exceed of¬ $882,987.

· Requesting authorization to enter into a new grant agreement with Openhouse for the provision of Community Services for seniors and adults with disabilities during the period of July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2020; in the amount of $528,836 plus a 10% contingency for a total amount not to exceed of¬ $581,719.

· Requesting authorization to enter into a new grant agreement with Russian American Community Services for the provision of Community Services for seniors and adults with disabilities during the period of July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2020; in the amount of $186,328 plus a 10% contingency for a total amount not to exceed of¬ $204,960.

· Requesting authorization to enter into a new grant agreement with San Francisco Senior Center for the provision of Community Services for seniors and adults with disabilities during the period of July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2020; in the amount of $1,095,292 plus a 10% contingency for a total amount not to exceed of¬ $1,204,821.


· Requesting authorization to enter into a new grant agreement with Self Help for the Elderly for the provision of Community Services for seniors and adults with disabilities during the period of July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2020; in the amount of $1,277,048 plus a 10% contingency for a total amount not to exceed of¬ $1,404,752.

· Requesting authorization to enter into a new grant agreement with Southwest Community Corporation for the provision of Community Services for seniors and adults with disabilities during the period of July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2020; in the amount of $405,296 plus a 10% contingency for a total amount not to exceed of¬ $445,825.

· Requesting authorization to enter into a new grant agreement with Y M C A of San Francisco for the provision of Community Services for seniors and adults with disabilities during the period of July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2020; in the amount of $911,916 plus a 10% contingency for a total amount not to exceed of¬ $1,003,107.

Board of Appeals (Wednesday, May 2, 5PM) - CANCELLED

Historic Preservation (Wednesday, May 2, 1230PM)

Discussion Only


· LANDMARK DESIGNATION AND CULTURAL HERITAGE WORK PROGRAM QUARTERLY REPORTS – Discussion of the HPC's Landmark Designation Work Program and the draft Cultural Heritage Work Program.

Action Items


· MINT-MISSION CONSERVATION DISTRICT – Assessor’s Block 3704, Lots 003, 010, 012, 013, 015, 017, 018, 019, 020, 021, 022, 024, 028, 029, 034, 035, 059, 079, 113, 144; Assessor’s Block 3725, Lots 087, 088 (District 4). The district is bound by Stevenson Street to the north, Mint and 5th streets to the east, Mission and Minna streets to the south and 6th Street to the west. As part of the Central SoMa planning effort, consideration to Initiate Change in Designation of seventeen (17) properties from not rated under Article 11 or Unrated (Category V) under Article 11 to Category 1 (Significant) through Category IV (Contributory) pursuant to Section 1106 of the Planning Code; and Initiate Conservation District Designation of the Mint-Mission Conservation District as an Article 11 Conservation District pursuant to Section 1107 of the Planning Code. The Mint-Mission Conservation District encompasses a cohesive concentration of reinforced concrete and brick masonry buildings constructed between 1906 and 1930.The District retains a mix of residential hotels, small-scale commercial buildings, warehouses and manufacturing facilities reflective of the area’s role as the center of industrial production in San Francisco and the major supplier of mining equipment, heavy machinery and other goods to the western states. The District is comprised of twenty-two properties, nineteen of which include contributing resources. The Mint Mission Conservation District is located in a C-3-GDowntown General Zoning District and 90-X Height and Bulk District. Preliminary Recommendation: Initiate

· 1942 SUTTER STREET – located on the north side of Sutter Street between Webster and Fillmore Streets, Assessor’s Block 0677; Lot 032 (District 5). Request for Certificate of Appropriateness to construct a horizontal addition at the first and second stories of the side (east) facade, visible from Cottage Row, and addition of new fenestration along the east side facade. The subject property is located within the Bush Street – Cottage Row Landmark District, RM-3 (Residential, Mixed, Medium Density) Zoning District, and 40-X Height and Bulk District. Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions

· MURPHY WINDMILL – located in Golden Gate Park, on the north side of Martin Luther King Jr. Drive between John F. Kennedy Drive and the Great Highway, identified as a portion of Assessor’s Block 1700; Lot 001 (District 1). Request for Certificate of Appropriateness for alterations to comply with OSHA standards: (1) on the exterior: extension of the gallery rail by 5”, addition of a toe-kick at the bottom of the railing, replacement of deteriorated exterior gallery level wood doors with in-kind weather resistant materials, addition of tieoffs for fall protection on the stocks, safety additions to the fan tail (steel bracing and  cables for fall protection), and exterior lights at the entrance, and (2) at the interior: replacement of the existing wooden stairs with safety paneling, and removal of small sections of the floor surface on all levels for head clearance. The Murphy Windmill is located within a P (Public) Zoning District and OS (Open Space) Height and Bulk District. The Murphy Windmill and Millwright’s Cottage, and the landscaped open space setting surrounding the two structures was locally designated as San Francisco Landmark No. 210 under Article 10 of the Planning Code in May 2000. Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions

· 3333 CALIFORNIA STREET – south side of California Street between Presidio Avenue and Laurel Street, in Assessor’s Parcel 1032, Lot 003 (District 2) - Request for Review and Comment on the nomination of the property to the National Register of Historic Places for its association with the San Francisco insurance industry, as one of the principal embodiemnts of the postwar decentralization and suburbanization of San Francisco, as the work of three masters – the architect Edward B. Page, the engineering firm of John J. Gould & J.J. Degenkolb/Henry J. Degenkolb & Associates, and the landscape architectural firm of Eckbo, Royston, & Williams/Eckbo, Austin, Dean and Williams – and as an example of a corporate headquarters in San Francisco that reflects mid-twentieth-century modernist design principles. The subject property is located within a RM-1 ResidentialMixed, Low Density Zoning District and 40-X Height and Bulk District. Preliminary Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution in support of the nomination, subject to revisions, to the National Register of Historic Places.

· 255 MENDELL STREET – south side of Mendell Street between Evans Avenue and Newhall Street in the India Basin Industrial Park in the Bayview neighborhood. Assessor’s Block 4570, Lot 026 (District 10). Consideration of adoption of a resolution recommending Small Business Commission approval of a Legacy Business application. Knights’ Catering is a catering business that has served San Francisco for 55 years. The Legacy Business Registry recognizes longstanding, community-serving businesses that are valuable cultural assets to the City. In addition, the City intends that the Registry be a tool for providing educational and promotional assistance to Legacy Businesses to encourage their continued viability and success. The subject business is within the within a PDR-2 (Production, Distribution, and Repair) Zoning District and 65-J Height and Bulk District. Preliminary Recommendation: Adopt a Recommendation for Approval

Police (Wednesday, May 2, 530PM)

Action Items


· Request of the Chief of Police for approval to retroactively accept a grant of $10,000.00 from lead agency La Casa de las Madres to go towards costs connected with SFPD’s participation in the Bayview Domestic Violence High Risk Program 


· PERSONNEL EXCEPTION - Discussion and possible action to accept or reject Settlement Agreement filed in Case No. IAD 2016-0228, or take other action, if necessary (Closed Session)


· PERSONNEL EXCEPTION - Discussion and possible action for possible disposition of Case No. ALW IAD 2015-0082, or take other action, if necessary (Closed Session)


· PERSONNEL EXCEPTION - Discussion and possible action for possible disposition of Case No. ALW IAD 2015-0083, or take other action, if necessary (Closed Session)


· PERSONNEL EXCEPTION - Discussion and possible action for possible disposition of Case No. IAD 2014-0089, or take other action, if necessary (Closed Session)


· PERSONNEL EXCEPTION - Discussion and possible action for possible disposition of Case No. OCC 0291-16, or take other action, if necessary (Closed Session)


· PERSONNEL EXCEPTION:   Status and calendaring of pending disciplinary cases (Closed Session)

City Hall Preservation (Thursday, May 3, 5PM)

Planning (Thursday, May 3, 12PM)

Consideration of Items Proposed for Continuance


· 792 CAPP STREET – west side of Capp Street, between 22nd and 23rd Streets; lot 019B of Assessor’s Block 3637 (District 9) - Request for Conditional Use Authorization pursuant to Planning Code Sections 209.4, 303, and 317, proposing to demolish the existing two-story single-family home and construct a new four-story (40 foot tall) residential structure containing four dwelling units within a Residential Transit Oriented - Mission (RTO-M) Zoning District, Calle 24 Special Use District, and 40-X Height and Bulk District. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h). Preliminary Recommendation: Disapprove (Proposed Continuance to May 17, 2018)

· 75, 77, 79-81 LELAND AVENUE – located on the south side of Leland Avenue, west of Desmond Street, east of Talbert Court, and north of Visitacion Avenue; Lots: 007B and 030 in Assessor’s Block 6250 (District 10) - Request for Discretionary Review of Building Permit Application Nos. 2015.0629.0164, 2015.0629.0165, and 2015.0629.0158, to construct three new buildings including two two-story, single-family homes (addressed as 75 and 77 Leland Avenue) and one new three-story mixed-use building with ground floor retail professional service and residential above (addressed as 79-81 Leland Avenue). The Project is located within an RH-1 (Residential, House, One-Family) as well as a NC-2 (Neighborhood Commercial-Small Scale) Zoning District and 40-X Height and Bulk District. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h). Preliminary Recommendation: Do Not Take Discretionary Review and Approve  (Proposed Continuance to June 7, 2018)

· PUBLIC PARKING LOTS AS A PERMITTED USE IN THE GLEN PARK NCT DISTRICT AND ADJOINING LOCATIONS – Planning Code Amendment to permit as of right Public Parking Lot uses where the parcel is located in both the Glen Park Neighborhood Commercial Transit and RH-2 (Residential, House Districts, Two-Family) zoning districts, the property has been used as Public Parking Lot for the past ten years without the benefit of a permit, and the adjoining RH-2 parcel is no larger than 40 feet by 110 feet; affirming the Planning Department’s determination under the California Environmental Quality Act; making findings of consistency with the General Plan, and the eight priority policies of Planning Code, Section 101.1; and making findings of public necessity, convenience, and welfare pursuant to Planning Code, Section 302. (Proposed Continuance to June 7, 2018)

· 1 DE HARO STREET – between King and Berry Streets – Lots 303 & 304 in Assessor’s Block 3800 (District 10) – Request for an Office Development Authorization under Planning Code Sections 320, 321 and 322 to authorize up to 86,301 sq. ft. from the Office Development Annual Limit. The Project would construct a new four-story, 58-ft. tall mixed-use building containing 869,301 sq. ft. of office use and 43,318 sq. ft. of PDR uses. The Project site is located within the PDR-1-G (Production, Distribution and Repair - General) Zoning District and 58-X Height and Bulk District. (Proposed Continuance to June 14, 2018)

1 DE HARO STREET – between King and Berry Streets – Lots 303 & 304 in Assessor’s Block 3800 (District 10) – Request for Conditional Use Authorization, pursuant to Planning Code Sections 210.3C and 303, for uses that support new development of Production, Distribution and Repair (PDR) space for the project involving demolition of three existing two-story, 25-ft. tall light industrial buildings (collectively measuring approximately 10,620 sq. ft.), and construction a new four-story, 58-ft. tall mixed-use building containing 86,301 sq. ft. of office use and 43,318 sq. ft. of PDR uses. The Project also includes 10 accessory parking spaces adjacent to the building, streetscape improvements, 36 Class 1 and 24 Class 2 bicycle parking spaces. The Project is contingent upon the approval of new legislation associated with reauthorizing Planning Code Section 210.3C (See Case No. 2018-003257PCA). The Project site is located within the PDR-1-G (Production, Distribution and Repair - General) Zoning District and 58-X Height and Bulk District. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h). (Proposed Continuance to June 14, 2018)

· 214 STATES STREET – north side of States Street between Levant and Castro Streets; Lot 038 in Assessor’s Block 2622 (District 8) - Request for Conditional Use Authorization, pursuant to Planning Code Sections 303 and 317, to allow the tantamount to demolition of an existing 1,635 square foot, two-story single family home and the addition of a ground floor garage and front entrance, a horizontal rear addition, three new roof dormers and the enclosing of two front decks to create bay windows. The project site is located within a RH2 (Residential, House, Two-Family) Zoning District and 40-X Height and Bulk District. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h). Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions with Modifications (Proposed Continuance to June 14, 2018)

· 89 ROOSEVELT WAY – south side of Roosevelt Way at Buena Vista Terrace; Lot 077 in Assessor’s Block 2612 (District 8) - Request for Discretionary Review of Building Permit Application No. 2016.09.19.8061, proposing the vertical addition of a mezzanine level with roof decks to an existing 3-story building within a RM-1 (Residential-Mixed, Low Density) Zoning District and 40-X Height and Bulk District. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h). Preliminary Recommendation: Pending (Proposed Continuance to June 21, 2018)

Discussion Only


· CENTRAL SOMA HOUSING SUSTAINABILITY DISTRICT – Informational Presentation regarding the Business and Tax Regulations Code and Planning Code Amendments to create the Central South of Market Housing Sustainability District, encompassing an area generally bounded on its western portion by Sixth Street, on its eastern portion by Second Street, on its northern portion by the border of the Downtown Plan Area (an irregular border that generally jogs along Folsom, Howard and Stevenson Streets), and on its southern portion by Townsend Street, to provide a streamlined and ministerial approval process for certain housing projects meeting specific labor, on-site affordability, and other requirements; establishing a fee for applications for residential development permits within the District; making approval findings under the California Environmental Quality Act; making findings of public convenience, necessity, and welfare under Planning Code, Section 302; and making findings of consistency with the General Plan, and the eight priority policies of Planning Code, Section 101.1.

Action Items


· 2001 MARKET STREET – south side of Market Street at the corner of Dolores Street; lots 042-045 of Assessor’s Block 3535 (District 8) – Request for a Conditional Use Authorization, pursuant to Planning Code Sections 303, 303.1, and 752, to establish a Formula Retail Use (d.b.a. Genji Sushi, an approximately 50 square foot limited restaurant use specializing in sushi packaged for takeout in the deli area) inside an existing Whole Foods Market grocery store located within a NCT-3 (Moderate Scale Neighborhood Commercial District, 80-X and 40-X Height and Bulk Districts. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h). Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions

· REAUTHORIZING SECTION 210.3C CONCERNING NEW PRODUCTION, DISTRIBUTION, AND REPAIR SPACE – Planning Code Amendment to reauthorize provisions that support the development of new Production, Distribution, and Repair (PDR) space in specified PDR Zoning Districts; affirming the Planning Department’s determination under the California Environmental Quality Act; making findings of consistency with the General Plan, and the eight priority policies of the Planning Code, Section 101.1, and findings of public necessity, convenience, and welfare under Planning Code, Section 302. Preliminary Recommendation: Approve

· 2525 VAN NESS AVENUE – west side of Van Ness Avenue between Union Street and Filbert Street, Lot 004 in Assessor’s Block 0527 (District 2) – Request for Conditional Use Authorization, pursuant to Planning Code Sections 253 and 303 to construct an approximately 65-foot tall building of approximately 70,080 square feet containing 28 dwelling units, approximately 2,000 square feet of ground floor retail, and up to 14 offstreet parking spaces. The project site is located in a RC-3 (Residential-Commercial, Medium Density) Zoning District and 65-A Height and Bulk District. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h). Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions

2525 VAN NESS AVENUE – west side of Van Ness Avenue between Union Street and Filbert Street, Lot 004 in Assessor’s Block 0527 (District 2) – Request for a Variance from the Zoning Administrator to address the requirements for the rear yard (Section 134) and dwelling unit exposure (Section 140). The project will construct an approximately 65-foot tall building of approximately 70,080 square feet containing 28 dwelling units, approximately 2,000 square feet of ground floor retail, and up to 14 off-street parking spaces. The project site is located in a RC-3 (Residential-Commercial, Medium Density) Zoning District and 65-A Height and Bulk District.


· 1100 POTRERO AVENUE – southwest corner of Potrero Avenue and 23rd Street; lot 001 in Assessor’s Block 4211 (District 9) – Request for Conditional Use Authorization, pursuant to Planning Code Sections 207, 209.1 and 303, to construct up to one dwelling unit for every 1,000 square feet of lot area for the project proposing a new four-story, 49-feet tall building containing four dwelling units adjacent to a limited commercial nonconforming use on the 3,500 square-foot lot. The subject property is located within a RH-3 (Residential– House, Three Family) Zoning District and 55-X Height and Bulk District. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h). Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions

1100 POTRERO AVENUE – southwest corner of Potrero Avenue and 23rd Street; lot 001 in Assessor’s Block 4211 (District 9) – Request for a Variance to the rear yard requirement pursuant to Planning Code Section 134, to allow the construction of a new building containing four dwelling units to encroach 11-feet 6-inches into the rear yard. The subject property is located within a RH-3 (Residential – House, Three Family) Zoning District and 55-X Height and Bulk District.


· 749 27TH STREET – south side of 27th Street between Douglas and Diamond Streets; lot 012 of Assessor’s Block 6588 (District 8) – Request for a Conditional Use Authorization, pursuant to Planning Code Sections 303 and 317, to allow the tantamount to demolition of an existing two-story detached one-unit dwelling at the front of the property and the alteration of a detached single-family one-unit dwelling at the rear of the property. The project also requests a Variance from the Planning Code for front setback requirements, pursuant to Section 132. The subject property is located within a RH-1 (Residential – House, One Family) Zoning District and 40-X Height and Bulk District. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h). Preliminary Recommendation: Pending


749 27TH STREET – south side of 27th Street between Douglas and Diamond Streets; lot 012 of Assessor’s Block 6588 (District 8) – Request for a Variance from the Planning Code for front setback requirements, pursuant to Section 132. The project is to allow the tantamount to demolition of an existing two-story detached one-unit dwelling at the front of the property and the alteration of a detached single-family one-unit dwelling at the rear of the property. The subject property is located within a RH-1 (Residential – House, One Family) Zoning District and 40-X Height and Bulk District.


· 2280 MARKET STREET – at Noe Street; Lot 013 of Assessor’s Block 3560 (District 8) – Request for Conditional Use Authorization, pursuant to Planning Code Sections 303, 303.1, 121.2, and 764 to allow a change of use to a Formula Retail Gym (d.b.a. Barry’s Bootcamp) in the existing commercial space greater than 4,000 square feet in size and operate before 6am on the property within the Upper Market NCT (Neighborhood Commercial Transit District) and 50/40-X Height and Bulk Districts. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h). Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions

· 2071 47TH AVENUE – at Quintara Street; Lot 015 of Assessor’s Block 2167 (District 4) - Request for Discretionary Review of Building Permit Application 2017.05.03.5591 within the RH-1 (Residential, House – One Family) and 40-X Height and Bulk District. The proposal includes horizontal and vertical additions to an existing two-story single family residence. The proposal includes interior renovations and new front and rear decks. Additionally, the proposal will add one new Accessory Dwelling Unit to the ground floor per Ordinance 95-17. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h). Staff Analysis: Full Discretionary Review Preliminary Recommendation: Do Not Take Discretionary Review and Approve with Modifications

· 739 DE HARO STREET – east side of De Haro Street between 19th and 20th Streets; Lot 024 of Assessor’s Block 4071 (District 10) - Requests for Discretionary Review of Building Permit Application 2017.03.07.0898 within a RH-2 (Residential, House – Two Family) and 40-X Height and Bulk District. The proposal includes the remodel of an existing single family home with a new third story vertical addition and new garage at the street level. The proposal includes a new front façade, interior renovations and upgrade of the mechanical, electrical and structural systems. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h). Staff Analysis: Abbreviated Discretionary Review Preliminary Recommendation: Do Not Take Discretionary Review and Approve with Modification

Miscellaneous

· Retiree Health Care Trust Fund Board (Monday, April 30, 130PM)



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

Cc: Son, Chanbory (CPC); Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR MARK FARRELL COMBATS STREET CONDITIONS WITH NEARLY $13

MILLION IN NEW CITYWIDE INVESTMENTS TO CLEAN COMMUNITIES
Date: Wednesday, April 25, 2018 11:26:54 AM
Attachments: 4.25.18 Comprehensive Street Cleaning Plan.pdf

 
 
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
Sent: Wednesday, April 25, 2018 11:10 AM
To: MayorsPressOffice, MYR (MYR)
Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR MARK FARRELL COMBATS STREET CONDITIONS WITH
NEARLY $13 MILLION IN NEW CITYWIDE INVESTMENTS TO CLEAN COMMUNITIES
 
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Wednesday, April 25, 2018
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, 415-554-6131
 

*** PRESS RELEASE ***
MAYOR MARK FARRELL COMBATS STREET CONDITIONS

WITH NEARLY $13 MILLION IN NEW CITYWIDE
INVESTMENTS TO CLEAN COMMUNITIES

New budget priorities include dedicated cleaning teams in each Supervisorial District
and expansion of successful public toilet program

 
San Francisco, CA— Responding to public outcry, Mayor Mark Farrell today announced
nearly $13 million in new investments for street cleaning during the next two years, including
dedicated teams to concentrate on issues in every City district.
 
Mayor Farrell will expand the City’s staffed public toilet program, increasing hours at five
existing locations and funding the creation of five new facilities. Earlier this week, Mayor
Farrell announced the creation of a new rapid response team specifically for syringe cleanup.
 
“Every day I hear from residents, visitors and business owners who are complaining about
street cleanliness—we are taking decisive measures now to fix those problems,” said Mayor
Farrell. “This is an issue that affects communities across San Francisco and it is unacceptable.
We will combat the cleanliness problems plaguing our streets, and we will do so in an
aggressive, targeted and smart manner.”
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


 


San Francisco, CA— Responding to public outcry, Mayor Mark Farrell today announced nearly 


$13 million in new investments for street cleaning during the next two years, including dedicated 


teams to concentrate on issues in every City district.  


 


Mayor Farrell will expand the City’s staffed public toilet program, increasing hours at five 


existing locations and funding the creation of five new facilities. Earlier this week, Mayor Farrell 


announced the creation of a new rapid response team specifically for syringe cleanup.  


 


“Every day I hear from residents, visitors and business owners who are complaining about street 


cleanliness—we are taking decisive measures now to fix those problems,” said Mayor Farrell. 


“This is an issue that affects communities across San Francisco and it is unacceptable. We will 


combat the cleanliness problems plaguing our streets, and we will do so in an aggressive, 


targeted and smart manner.” 


 


Mayor Farrell’s two-year proposed budget includes $12.8 million in new initiatives. The plan 


will include funding for 44 new neighborhood cleaning workers, who will be divided evenly 


among San Francisco’s 11 Supervisorial districts. The workers—called block sweepers—will 


target corridors in each district most in need of focused cleaning efforts. In addition, Mayor 


Farrell’s plan will also include funding for a new street cleaning program in the SoMa District 


that will operate five days a week.  


 


The proposed budget will feature funding for five new Pit Stops, staffed facilities that provide 


safe and clean public toilets in high-need communities. The Mayor will also expand hours at five 


existing Pit Stop locations, which have a proven track record of reducing human waste on 


sidewalks and streets.  


 


Mayor Farrell will complement his expanded staffing efforts with $3.4 million in new equipment 


investments for the next two fiscal years.  


 


“The increase in manual block sweeping—an initiative that has proven successful in other major 


cities across the globe—and the expansion of the Pit Stop program will make a meaningful 


impact on the cleanliness of our neighborhoods,” said Public Works Director Mohammed Nuru. 
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“The bolstered resources for street cleaning will benefit our residents, workers and visitors here 


in San Francisco.” 


 


Along with his new budget investments, Mayor Farrell will expand the City’s popular Fix-It 


Team, a multi-agency unit that quickly responds to quality-of-life concerns, such as graffiti, 


broken streetlights and unpainted curbs. The Fix-It Team will increase operations from 25 zones 


to 35 zones, further offering assistance to communities across San Francisco.  


 


“Every community in San Francisco has unique issues, and our Fix-It team is here to address 


those specific concerns,” said Fix-It Director Sandra Zuniga. “When residents see something 


wrong, they want it fixed and they want it fixed quickly. We understand that and we are excited 


to expand our problem-solving efforts to 10 new areas across San Francisco.  


 


These efforts will complement Mayor Farrell’s existing street-cleaning programs, which include 


a recently-created team that specifically targets discarded needles in local communities. That unit 


is dispatched to neighborhoods based on resident complaints, providing swift and precise 


responses to community concerns.  


 


“Our streets are filthy and as a City we can do better,” said Supervisor Ahsha Safaí. “The 


commitment shown in this year’s budget is a strong step in the right direction. I believe with 


dedication and a strong will we can clean all of our City’s streets.”  


 


“As a longtime resident of San Francisco, I’ve never seen the streets this dirty,” said Supervisor 


Catherine Stefani. “My constituents in District 2 have made it loud and clear that things need to 


change. The Department of Public Works has been working hard to meet this challenges, but 


need these additional funds to address issues throughout the City. I want to thank Mayor Farrell 


and my colleagues on the Budget and Finance Committee for making this a priority and adding 


these needed funds.” 


 


 


 


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
safe and clean public toilets in high-need communities. The Mayor will also expand hours at
five existing Pit Stop locations, which have a proven track record of reducing human waste on
sidewalks and streets.
 
Mayor Farrell will complement his expanded staffing efforts with $3.4 million in new
equipment investments for the next two fiscal years.
 
“The increase in manual block sweeping—an initiative that has proven successful in other
major cities across the globe—and the expansion of the Pit Stop program will make a
meaningful impact on the cleanliness of our neighborhoods,” said Public Works Director
Mohammed Nuru. “The bolstered resources for street cleaning will benefit our residents,
workers and visitors here in San Francisco.”
 
Along with his new budget investments, Mayor Farrell will expand the City’s popular Fix-It
Team, a multi-agency unit that quickly responds to quality-of-life concerns, such as graffiti,
broken streetlights and unpainted curbs. The Fix-It Team will increase operations from 25
zones to 35 zones, further offering assistance to communities across San Francisco.
 
“Every community in San Francisco has unique issues, and our Fix-It team is here to address
those specific concerns,” said Fix-It Director Sandra Zuniga. “When residents see something
wrong, they want it fixed and they want it fixed quickly. We understand that and we are
excited to expand our problem-solving efforts to 10 new areas across San Francisco.
 
These efforts will complement Mayor Farrell’s existing street-cleaning programs, which
include a recently-created team that specifically targets discarded needles in local
communities. That unit is dispatched to neighborhoods based on resident complaints,
providing swift and precise responses to community concerns.
 
“Our streets are filthy and as a City we can do better,” said Supervisor Ahsha Safaí. “The
commitment shown in this year’s budget is a strong step in the right direction. I believe with
dedication and a strong will we can clean all of our City’s streets.”
 
“As a longtime resident of San Francisco, I’ve never seen the streets this dirty,” said
Supervisor Catherine Stefani. “My constituents in District 2 have made it loud and clear that
things need to change. The Department of Public Works has been working hard to meet this
challenges, but need these additional funds to address issues throughout the City. I want to
thank Mayor Farrell and my colleagues on the Budget and Finance Committee for making this
a priority and adding these needed funds.”
 
 
 



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
Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR MARK FARRELL, TRANSPORTATION DIRECTOR ED REISKIN AND POLICE

CHIEF BILL SCOTT ANNOUNCE DECREASE IN CAR BREAK-INS AS FIRST PART OF NEW PUBLIC SAFETY
INITIATIVE IN CITY GARAGES

Date: Tuesday, April 24, 2018 12:11:22 PM
Attachments: 4.24.18 Parking Garage Crime Decrease.pdf

 
 
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
Sent: Tuesday, April 24, 2018 12:06 PM
To: MayorsPressOffice, MYR (MYR)
Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR MARK FARRELL, TRANSPORTATION DIRECTOR ED REISKIN
AND POLICE CHIEF BILL SCOTT ANNOUNCE DECREASE IN CAR BREAK-INS AS FIRST PART OF NEW
PUBLIC SAFETY INITIATIVE IN CITY GARAGES
 
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Monday, April 23, 2018
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, 415-554-6131
 

*** PRESS RELEASE ***
MAYOR MARK FARRELL, TRANSPORTATION DIRECTOR
ED REISKIN AND POLICE CHIEF BILL SCOTT ANNOUNCE

DECREASE IN CAR BREAK-INS AS FIRST PART OF NEW
PUBLIC SAFETY INITIATIVE IN CITY GARAGES

Auto break-ins drop 83 percent in SFMTA garage outfitted with new surveillance resources,
additional staffing

 
San Francisco, CA— Mayor Mark Farrell, San Francisco Municipal Transportation Agency
Director Ed Reiskin and San Francisco Police Chief Bill Scott today announced that car break-
ins have dropped 83 percent at the Sutter-Stockton garage in Union Square as part of a public
safety improvement plan that will soon be expanded to all public garages.
 
“Enough is enough—we are taking ambitious and smart new measures to prevent car break-
ins in the city,” said Mayor Farrell. “It should not be a gamble to park your car in San
Francisco.
Thanks to the existing public safety upgrades in a number of our garages, the criminals of this
city are beginning to think twice before breaking the law, and we are going to aggressively
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


 


“Enough is enough—we are taking ambitious and smart new measures to prevent car break-ins 


in the city,” said Mayor Farrell. “It should not be a gamble to park your car in San Francisco.  


Thanks to the existing public safety upgrades in a number of our garages, the criminals of this 


city are beginning to think twice before breaking the law, and we are going to aggressively 


expand these security efforts across of all our City-owned garages. A crime prevented is better 


than a crime solved.”  


 


At the Sutter-Stockton garage, the City realized a staggering drop in car break-ins after assigning 


a dedicated police officer to the garage, installing fencing and locking down electrical outlets to 


prevent loitering in February. In January, there were 44 car break-in at the garage, and in 


March—following the implementation of the initiatives—those numbers dropped to nine, an 83 


percent decrease. There have been zero car break-ins at the garage to-date in April. 


 


The SFMTA also recently installed 56 high-definition cameras to deter break-ins and capture 


crime on camera for immediate SFPD follow-up at six other popular garages—Lombard, 


Polk/Bush, Vallejo, North Beach, Portsmouth Square and Pierce St. After installation, the Pierce 


St. garage saw the most significant decline in break-ins, with a 55 percent reduction in the six 


months following the upgrades. The other garages that received the camera upgrades saw a 


sustained low number of car break-ins, with several continuing their level of zero car break-ins 


each month. 


 


Many of the recent improvements at the SFMTA’s public garages and lots stem from the 


agency’s efforts to make the facilities more convenient and secure using new technology. 


Hardware and software upgrades being implemented at 22 SFMTA-owned garages and lots 


include new entry and exit stations, improved payment kiosks, two-way intercom systems, high-


definition cameras and a central monitoring station to monitor video and provide 24/7 assistance. 
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Full completion for the 22 garage and lot upgrades is set for 2020, with six garages finished and 


two underway and 14 upcoming.  


 


“The SFMTA’s work to make our garages and lots safer, more convenient and secure are paying 


off, but we know there is still more work to do,” said SFMTA Director Reiskin. “We will 


continue to use new technology, targeted campaigns and increased collaboration with the SFPD 


to take the air out of serial criminals and prevent auto burglaries.” 


 


The San Francisco Police Department has also partnered with the SFMTA to step up 


enforcement and crime prevention at city-owned garages and lots. Targeted initiatives include 


the deployment of plain clothes teams and focused deployment of officers based on crime data. 


The department is also working with the SFMTA to identify areas for facility security 


improvements, which have ranged from updating lighting plans and installing new fencing to 


prevent illegal entry, to locking down electrical outlets to prevent loitering. 


 


“Our officers are making good, solid arrests and we are seeing an encouraging decrease in auto 


burglaries over last year,” said Police Chief Scott. “This collaborative approach with our partner 


agencies is enabling SFPD to improve our responsiveness, educate the public on theft prevention 


and more effectively deter and investigate car break-ins.” 


 


The announcement follows Mayor Farrell’s kickoff of the Park Smart campaign to prevent and 


respond to car break-ins. The campaign includes increased SFPD foot patrols, units dedicated to 


deal with property crimes, expanded investigative resources at district stations, more training for 


fingerprinting and a new public awareness campaign. During the first three months of 2018, car 


break-ins decreased 17 percent compared to the prior year as a result of ongoing efforts from the 


San Francisco Police Department and San Francisco Municipal Transportation Agency to 


address property crimes.  


 


 


### 


 


 


 


 


  







expand these security efforts across of all our City-owned garages. A crime prevented is better
than a crime solved.”
 
At the Sutter-Stockton garage, the City realized a staggering drop in car break-ins after
assigning a dedicated police officer to the garage, installing fencing and locking down
electrical outlets to prevent loitering in February. In January, there were 44 car break-in at the
garage, and in March—following the implementation of the initiatives—those numbers
dropped to nine, an 83 percent decrease. There have been zero car break-ins at the garage to-
date in April.
 
The SFMTA also recently installed 56 high-definition cameras to deter break-ins and capture
crime on camera for immediate SFPD follow-up at six other popular garages—Lombard,
Polk/Bush, Vallejo, North Beach, Portsmouth Square and Pierce St. After installation, the
Pierce St. garage saw the most significant decline in break-ins, with a 55 percent reduction in
the six months following the upgrades. The other garages that received the camera upgrades
saw a sustained low number of car break-ins, with several continuing their level of zero car
break-ins each month.
 
Many of the recent improvements at the SFMTA’s public garages and lots stem from the
agency’s efforts to make the facilities more convenient and secure using new technology.
Hardware and software upgrades being implemented at 22 SFMTA-owned garages and lots
include new entry and exit stations, improved payment kiosks, two-way intercom systems,
high-definition cameras and a central monitoring station to monitor video and provide 24/7
assistance. Full completion for the 22 garage and lot upgrades is set for 2020, with six garages
finished and two underway and 14 upcoming.
 
“The SFMTA’s work to make our garages and lots safer, more convenient and secure are
paying off, but we know there is still more work to do,” said SFMTA Director Reiskin. “We
will continue to use new technology, targeted campaigns and increased collaboration with the
SFPD to take the air out of serial criminals and prevent auto burglaries.”
 
The San Francisco Police Department has also partnered with the SFMTA to step up
enforcement and crime prevention at city-owned garages and lots. Targeted initiatives include
the deployment of plain clothes teams and focused deployment of officers based on crime
data. The department is also working with the SFMTA to identify areas for facility security
improvements, which have ranged from updating lighting plans and installing new fencing to
prevent illegal entry, to locking down electrical outlets to prevent loitering.
 
“Our officers are making good, solid arrests and we are seeing an encouraging decrease in
auto burglaries over last year,” said Police Chief Scott. “This collaborative approach with our
partner agencies is enabling SFPD to improve our responsiveness, educate the public on theft
prevention and more effectively deter and investigate car break-ins.”
 
The announcement follows Mayor Farrell’s kickoff of the Park Smart campaign to prevent and
respond to car break-ins. The campaign includes increased SFPD foot patrols, units dedicated
to deal with property crimes, expanded investigative resources at district stations, more
training for fingerprinting and a new public awareness campaign. During the first three months
of 2018, car break-ins decreased 17 percent compared to the prior year as a result of ongoing
efforts from the San Francisco Police Department and San Francisco Municipal Transportation
Agency to address property crimes. 



 
 

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
Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR MARK FARRELL AWARDS CERTIFICATES OF HONOR TO DEPARTMENT OF

PUBLIC HEALTH TEAM RETURNING FROM MEDICAL RELIEF MISSION IN PUERTO RICO
Date: Tuesday, April 24, 2018 11:30:33 AM
Attachments: 4.24.18 DPH Puerto Rico Relief Mission.pdf

 
 
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
Sent: Tuesday, April 24, 2018 11:14 AM
To: MayorsPressOffice, MYR (MYR)
Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR MARK FARRELL AWARDS CERTIFICATES OF HONOR TO
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH TEAM RETURNING FROM MEDICAL RELIEF MISSION IN PUERTO
RICO
 
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Tuesday, April 24, 2018
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, 415-554-6131
 

*** PRESS RELEASE ***
MAYOR MARK FARRELL AWARDS CERTIFICATES OF
HONOR TO DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH TEAM

RETURNING FROM MEDICAL RELIEF MISSION
IN PUERTO RICO

Relief team spent eight days providing services to communities still without power from
Hurricane Maria

 
San Francisco, CA— Mayor Mark Farrell today welcomed back a team from the Department
of Public Health that took part in a medical relief mission in Puerto Rico. Mayor Farrell
recognized the efforts of the DPH unit by awarding the group Certificates of Honor from the
City. 
 
“This group of individuals epitomize the best of San Francisco,” said Mayor Farrell. “While
the federal administration has disgracefully ignored the humanitarian tragedy in Puerto Rico,
this collection of selfless medical professionals displayed true compassion while delivering
critical services to struggling communities. In San Francisco, we do not look the other way
when confronted with suffering—we pour our heart into helping those in need.”
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


 
San Francisco, CA— Mayor Mark Farrell today welcomed back a team from the Department of 
Public Health that took part in a medical relief mission in Puerto Rico. Mayor Farrell recognized 
the efforts of the DPH unit by awarding the group Certificates of Honor from the City.   
 
“This group of individuals epitomize the best of San Francisco,” said Mayor Farrell. “While the 
federal administration has disgracefully ignored the humanitarian tragedy in Puerto Rico, this 
collection of selfless medical professionals displayed true compassion while delivering critical 
services to struggling communities. In San Francisco, we do not look the other way when 
confronted with suffering—we pour our heart into helping those in need.” 
 
The DPH team comprised a group of 14 Spanish-speaking doctors, nurses and mental health 
providers who spent eight days in April in the northwestern part of Puerto Rico, in Hatillo and 
Utuado, where the damage from Hurricane Maria has left residents without water and power, 
seven months later.  
 
“Emergency response is part of the responsibilities of Health Departments. Responding to Puerto 
Rico was a humanitarian effort from San Francisco,” said Barbara Garcia, San Francisco Health 
Director. “The Health Department has a lot of experience with emergency response, and we 
knew the lack of infrastructure in Puerto Rico after the storm was going to continue to make 
health conditions much more difficult. We went to help the community, care for patients and 
provide support to the clinical staff on site who have been working incredibly hard with no 
breaks for months. Recovery will be a long process for Puerto Rico, and we wanted to help the 
providers who are central to the response.” 
 
The San Francisco team worked side by side with the staff of the local Corporacion Servicios 
Medicos (CSM), Federally Qualified Health Centers that include Clinica Hatillo and Clinica 
Utuado. The DPH team saw about 100 patients from April 6 – 14, by going out into the 
community and accompanying the CSM teams that have been doing this work daily since the 
storm.  
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Together, they trekked up mountains, waded through rivers and knocked on doors every day in 
tiny rural communities to ask people if they wanted to be seen by a medical team. They delivered 
care and medications, brought water and food, and even generators to help people who were still 
living without these basics of modern life.  
 
“It was a life changing experience,” said Dr. Hali Hammer, DPH team leader and Director of 
Primary Care for the San Francisco Health Network. “To see how poor the infrastructure is and 
how little immediate support they had after the hurricane, and the lasting effects of that, some 
seven months later.” 
 
Most of the patients were elderly people with poorly controlled chronic diseases such as 
diabetes, high blood pressure, asthma, chronic obstructive pulmonary disease (COPD) and sleep 
apnea. These conditions were exacerbated by the storm, which kicked up dust and created mold, 
knocked out power used to refrigerate medications and cut off safe drinking water.  
 
In addition to treating community members, the DPH behavioral health providers also worked 
with the clinic staff in Utuado, incredibly dedicated, hard-working people who hadn’t taken a 
moment to think about their own resilience and trauma during this experience.   
 
San Franciscans who want to contribute to this life-saving work can make donations to the 
Corporacion Servicios Medicos (CSM) through the San Francisco Public Health Foundation. 
 
The DPH team comes from San Francisco Health Network locations across the city, including 
Tom Waddell Urban Health Center, Potrero Hill Health Center, Southeast Health Center, Castro-
Mission Health Center, Shelter Health and Zuckerberg San Francisco General Hospital. The 
team members included Dr. Hammer, team lead; Tobi Skotnes, logistics coordinator; Viva 
Delgado, logistics and medication/supply coordinator; nurses Evita Mullins, Richard Santana, 
Ellen Davis, Ramona Soberanis; doctors Ann Dallman, Raul Gutierrez, Alexis Williams, 
Kenneth Payan; licensed clinical social worker Nakari Ron; counselor Jesus Pizano; psychologist 
Dr. Ricardo Carrillo.  
 
  
 


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
 
“Emergency response is part of the responsibilities of Health Departments. Responding to
Puerto Rico was a humanitarian effort from San Francisco,” said Barbara Garcia, San
Francisco Health Director. “The Health Department has a lot of experience with emergency
response, and we knew the lack of infrastructure in Puerto Rico after the storm was going to
continue to make health conditions much more difficult. We went to help the community, care
for patients and provide support to the clinical staff on site who have been working incredibly
hard with no breaks for months. Recovery will be a long process for Puerto Rico, and we
wanted to help the providers who are central to the response.”
 
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
tiny rural communities to ask people if they wanted to be seen by a medical team. They
delivered care and medications, brought water and food, and even generators to help people
who were still living without these basics of modern life.
 
“It was a life changing experience,” said Dr. Hali Hammer, DPH team leader and Director of
Primary Care for the San Francisco Health Network. “To see how poor the infrastructure is
and how little immediate support they had after the hurricane, and the lasting effects of that,
some seven months later.”
 
Most of the patients were elderly people with poorly controlled chronic diseases such as
diabetes, high blood pressure, asthma, chronic obstructive pulmonary disease (COPD) and
sleep apnea. These conditions were exacerbated by the storm, which kicked up dust and
created mold, knocked out power used to refrigerate medications and cut off safe drinking
water.
 
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
Tom Waddell Urban Health Center, Potrero Hill Health Center, Southeast Health Center,
Castro-Mission Health Center, Shelter Health and Zuckerberg San Francisco General Hospital.
The team members included Dr. Hammer, team lead; Tobi Skotnes, logistics coordinator;
Viva Delgado, logistics and medication/supply coordinator; nurses Evita Mullins, Richard
Santana, Ellen Davis, Ramona Soberanis; doctors Ann Dallman, Raul Gutierrez, Alexis
Williams, Kenneth Payan; licensed clinical social worker Nakari Ron; counselor Jesus Pizano;
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psychologist Dr. Ricardo Carrillo.
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
Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR MARK FARRELL AND CORK, IRELAND MAYOR TONY FITZGERALD

ANNOUNCE NEW COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT TO STRENGTHEN LGBTQ RIGHTS
Date: Monday, April 23, 2018 11:42:31 AM
Attachments: 4.23.18 Cork City LGBTQ Agreement.pdf

 
 
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
Sent: Monday, April 23, 2018 10:27 AM
To: MayorsPressOffice, MYR (MYR)
Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR MARK FARRELL AND CORK, IRELAND MAYOR TONY
FITZGERALD ANNOUNCE NEW COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT TO STRENGTHEN LGBTQ RIGHTS
 
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Monday, April 23, 2018
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, 415-554-6131
 

*** PRESS RELEASE ***
MAYOR MARK FARRELL AND CORK, IRELAND MAYOR

TONY FITZGERALD ANNOUNCE NEW COOPERATIVE
AGREEMENT TO STRENGTHEN LGBTQ RIGHTS

Sister Cities San Francisco and Cork City, Ireland take will sign a Memorandum of
Understanding today to enhance ties between the cities LGBTQ communities. 

 
San Francisco, CA— Mayor Mark Farrell and Lord Mayor Tony Fitzgerald of Cork, Ireland
today signed a Memorandum of Understanding that will enhance ties and establish new
relationships between the two cities’ Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual, Transgender and Queer
(LGBTQ) communities.
 
“San Francisco’s LGBTQ community has long been on the forefront of advancing critical civil
rights issues—we are proud to partner with Cork to share and advance these ideals,” said
Mayor Mark Farrell. “Compassion, empathy and inclusion are universal values, regardless of
which side of the Atlantic you reside. By working with Cork and Lord Mayor Fitzgerald we
can strengthen our collective LGBTQ communities while sharing our messages of hope with
other cities across the globe.”
 
San Francisco and Cork, which are Sister Cities, will be working together to exchange best
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


relationships between the two cities’ Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual, Transgender and Queer (LGBTQ) 


communities. 


 


“San Francisco’s LGBTQ community has long been on the forefront of advancing critical civil 


rights issues—we are proud to partner with Cork to share and advance these ideals,” said Mayor 


Mark Farrell. “Compassion, empathy and inclusion are universal values, regardless of which side 


of the Atlantic you reside. By working with Cork and Lord Mayor Fitzgerald we can strengthen 


our collective LGBTQ communities while sharing our messages of hope with other cities across 


the globe.” 


 


San Francisco and Cork, which are Sister Cities, will be working together to exchange best 


practices, programs and policies regarding critical LGBTQ issue. Additionally, the cities are 


partnering on a joint application for membership of the International Rainbow Cities Network. A 


successful application would result in San Francisco becoming the first U.S. city and Cork the 


first city of Ireland to secure membership.   


 


San Francisco has long been recognized for its support and commitment to LGBTQ residents and 


the City has encouraged other cities across the world to follow suit. In 2013, San Francisco gifted 


Cork a Rainbow Flag, and as a result, Cork became the first city in Ireland to fly the Rainbow 


Flag from a civic building. Cork was the only city in Ireland to include LGBTQ community 


members in their development plans to combat transphobia and homophobia and to host a LGBT 


community celebrations.  


 


“As Lord Mayor of Cork I’ve been delighted to lead this delegation to San Francisco and 


especially to sign a historic Memorandum which underscores the commitment each city has 


shown in creating inclusive and diverse Rainbow cities, and continuing our partnership with one 


another,” said Lord Mayor Fitzgerald “Mayor Farrell and I are privileged to lead harbor cities, 


our own motto references this: Statio Bene Fide Carinis – a good and safe harbor. Harbor cities 


are open, welcoming and often a place of sanctuary. The memorandum we’ve signed extends 
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that protection and openness in a very special way to LGBTQ communities and we have the 


assistance of the other signatories to make that a reality.”  


 


The partnership agreement is supported by San Francisco’s Mayor’s Office, Supervisor Jeff 


Sheehy, the San Francisco-Cork Sister City Committee, the San Francisco Human Rights 


Commission, the Office of Transgender Initiatives, the Social Inclusion Unit Cork City Council, 


and the Cork City LGBT Inter-Agency Steering Group.  


 


"We are excited to strengthen our relationship with Cork,” said Clair Farley, Senior Advisor and 


Executive Director of the Office of Transgender Initiatives. “Like Cork, San Francisco is also a 


city of LGBTQ firsts, such as having the country’s first openly gay elected official, the first city-


funded transgender employment program, and the country’s first Mayoral office dedicated to 


transgender and gender nonconforming issues. We are passionate about advancing policies and 


programs that support thriving LGBTQ communities, and we are excited to join this international 


effort for LGBTQ rights." 


 


“We offer our sincere and heartfelt thanks to Mayor Farrell and Lord Mayor Fitzgerald 


for initiating a memorandum that champions solidarity and values the alliances which enable 


us to collaborate on LGBTI+ issues and choose hope over hate,” said Siobhan O’Dowd, of the 


LGBT Cork City Interagency Group. 


“Cork has been a fabulous Sister to San Francisco and joining the Rainbow Cities Network 


together honors that bond,” said Supervisor Jeff Sheehy. “I met openly gay Irish 


Taoiseach/Prime Minister Leo Varadkar a few months ago, I was moved by the progress that 


Ireland has made in accepting its LGBT community and I welcome our shared Irish and LGBT 


heritages.” 


The decision for both Cork and San Francisco to jointly join the Rainbow Cities Network 


stemmed from former Mayor Edwin M. Lee’s visit last fall to Cork City with the Sister City 


delegation. 


 


  


 


### 


 







practices, programs and policies regarding critical LGBTQ issue. Additionally, the cities are
partnering on a joint application for membership of the International Rainbow Cities Network.
A successful application would result in San Francisco becoming the first U.S. city and Cork
the first city of Ireland to secure membership. 
 
San Francisco has long been recognized for its support and commitment to LGBTQ residents
and the City has encouraged other cities across the world to follow suit. In 2013, San
Francisco gifted Cork a Rainbow Flag, and as a result, Cork became the first city in Ireland to
fly the Rainbow Flag from a civic building. Cork was the only city in Ireland to include
LGBTQ community members in their development plans to combat transphobia and
homophobia and to host a LGBT community celebrations.
 
“As Lord Mayor of Cork I’ve been delighted to lead this delegation to San Francisco and
especially to sign a historic Memorandum which underscores the commitment each city has
shown in creating inclusive and diverse Rainbow cities, and continuing our partnership with
one another,” said Lord Mayor Fitzgerald “Mayor Farrell and I are privileged to lead harbor
cities, our own motto references this: Statio Bene Fide Carinis – a good and safe harbor.
Harbor cities are open, welcoming and often a place of sanctuary. The memorandum we’ve
signed extends that protection and openness in a very special way to LGBTQ communities and
we have the assistance of the other signatories to make that a reality.”
 
The partnership agreement is supported by San Francisco’s Mayor’s Office, Supervisor Jeff
Sheehy, the San Francisco-Cork Sister City Committee, the San Francisco Human Rights
Commission, the Office of Transgender Initiatives, the Social Inclusion Unit Cork City
Council, and the Cork City LGBT Inter-Agency Steering Group.
 
"We are excited to strengthen our relationship with Cork,” said Clair Farley, Senior Advisor
and Executive Director of the Office of Transgender Initiatives. “Like Cork, San Francisco is
also a city of LGBTQ firsts, such as having the country’s first openly gay elected official, the
first city-funded transgender employment program, and the country’s first Mayoral office
dedicated to transgender and gender nonconforming issues. We are passionate about
advancing policies and programs that support thriving LGBTQ communities, and we are
excited to join this international effort for LGBTQ rights."
 
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
Ireland has made in accepting its LGBT community and I welcome our shared Irish and
LGBT heritages.”

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
Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR MARK FARRELL ANNOUNCES NEW PUBLIC HEALTH TEAM DEDICATED TO

REMOVING SYRINGES FROM COMMUNITIES THROUGHOUT SAN FRANCISCO
Date: Monday, April 23, 2018 11:33:21 AM
Attachments: 4.23.18 Needle Cleanup.pdf

 
 
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
Sent: Monday, April 23, 2018 11:14 AM
To: MayorsPressOffice, MYR (MYR)
Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR MARK FARRELL ANNOUNCES NEW PUBLIC HEALTH TEAM
DEDICATED TO REMOVING SYRINGES FROM COMMUNITIES THROUGHOUT SAN FRANCISCO
 
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Monday, April 23, 2018
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, 415-554-6131
 

*** PRESS RELEASE ***
MAYOR MARK FARRELL ANNOUNCES NEW PUBLIC

HEALTH TEAM DEDICATED TO REMOVING SYRINGES
FROM COMMUNITIES THROUGHOUT SAN FRANCISCO

Joint effort between the Mayor’s Office and Department of Public Health will focus targeted
cleanup efforts in response to resident complaints

 
San Francisco, CA— Mayor Mark Farrell today announced the creation of a dedicated team
of public health professionals hired specifically to address the syringe litter epidemic on San
Francisco streets.
 
“We are taking an aggressive, focused approach to clean up needles on our streets and
sidewalks,” said Mayor Farrell. “This situation on our streets is unacceptable—I will not allow
the status quo to continue. When a resident calls in about needles, we are staffed to respond
immediately. I want to make sure when a business calls, our team will go to the storefront. We
will have the right people at the right places at the right times to address this epidemic.”
 
Ten additional workers will be hired specifically for syringe cleanup duties, significantly
increasing San Francisco’s focused, coordinated response to the issue of needle litter. The City
currently has four workers in a rapid response team to do needle cleanup and respond to
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


 


San Francisco, CA— Mayor Mark Farrell today announced the creation of a dedicated team of 


public health professionals hired specifically to address the syringe litter epidemic on San 


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


currently has four workers in a rapid response team to do needle cleanup and respond to resident 


complaints —this measure will more than triple existing efforts.   


 


The new hires—who will be contracted through the San Francisco AIDS Foundation—will 


conduct targeted sweeps of hot spots based on complaint data collected from 311, the City’s one-


stop center for reporting information on municipal services.  


 


Along with increasing staffing, the City will add an additional three disposal boxes for used 


needles. The initiative will improve data and measuring capabilities, while also ensuring that 


workers are on the ground seven days a week, including weekends and early mornings.  


 


 “The Health Department is committed to cleaner streets in San Francisco,” said Barbara Garcia, 


Director of Health. “For the last five years we have made an extra effort to improve the pickup of 


needle litter. This is an environmental health issue that affects everyone in the city, and it is a 


problem for cities all over the world. By increasing our response capabilities we expect to see a 


significant reduction in needles on the streets.” 


 


The additional resources devoted to cleanup duties will bolster the City’s existing efforts. The 


Department of Public Health (DPH) and its partners, including the San Francisco AIDS 


Foundation, collect more than 275,000 used needles per month. DPH has installed 19 disposal 
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boxes in areas of the City where drug use is prevalent. All 13 syringe access sites in San 


Francisco are disposal sites as well and all the City’s 18 Pit Stops—portable public toilets—are 


needle disposal sites. In addition, every Walgreens in San Francisco is a disposal site. 


 


“The City’s increased investment will allow us to build upon current disposal efforts which result 


in the collection and disposal of more than 275,000 used needles per month,” said Joe 


Hollendoner, CEO of San Francisco AIDS Foundation. “I am deeply thankful to the Mayor and 


the Department of Public Health for their steadfast commitment to the public’s health and 


safety.” 


 


### 
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To: 

Mayor’s Senior Staff

From: 

Francis Tsang

Date: 

April 23, 2018

Re: 

Commission Update for the Week of April 23, 2018

This memorandum summarizes and highlights agenda items before commissions and boards for the week of April 23, 2018. 


Film (Monday, April 23, 2PM)

Discussion Only


· VICE PRESIDENT’S REPORT – Vice President Stiker will report about President Wang’s trip to Taipei to sign an MOU with the Taipei Film Commission. Vice President Stiker will also report on the day-long Commission Retreat on March 8, 2018.

· COMMISSIONERS’ REPORTS – By Commissioners to share about tasks they have completed or plan to complete in relation to the Stage Space, facilitation of Production/Tech/Advertising Relationships, Branding/Marketing/Advertising of Film SF, Neighborhood/Merchant group relationship building, the Scene in San Francisco Rebate Program.

· EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REPORT


· an update on the number of recent film permits and notable productions which have shot in San Francisco; 

· an update on upcoming productions. 

· a report about the recent mixer held at the Speakeasy on March 15, 2018 

· a report on upcoming partnerships with CAAMFest and Frameline film festivals in May and June 

· an update on the effort to extend the CA State Film Tax Credit.


Small Business (Monday, April 23, 2PM)


Action Items


· Approval of Legacy Business Registry Application and Resolution.

· Marine Chartering Company, Inc.

· Mission Graduates 


· Presentation of Draft of the Legacy Business Program Annual Report for 2017-18


· Draft Ordinance -Public Works Code - Waiver of Temporary Street Space Occupancy Fee for Small Business Week Sidewalk Sales. Ordinance waiving the fee required by Public Works Code Section 724.1(b) for temporary street space occupancy permit on certain designated City streets on Saturday, May 19, 2018 as part of Small Business Week.

Airport (Tuesday, April 24, 9AM) - SPECIAL

Discussion Only


· PUBLIC EMPLOYEE APPOINTMENT – Title of Position: Commission Secretary. (Closed Session)

Action Items


· Retirement Resolution - Mr. Daniel F. Ravina


· Award of Contract No. 50107.01 Management and Operation of the Airport’s Public and Employee Parking - New South Parking - California, GP - $124,812,393

· Award of Contract No. 50118.01 Management and Operation of the SFO Medical Clinic - Emeryville Occupational Medical Center - $5,000,000

· Adoption of the Twenty-Second Supplemental Resolution Amending and Supplementing Prior Resolutions to Authorize an Additional $2.62 Billion Aggregate Principal Amount of San Francisco International Airport Second Series Revenue Refunding Bonds

· Authorization and Approval of the Execution and Delivery of Continuing Covenant Agreements with Respect to Bonds of the San Francisco International Airport, and Certain Related Actions

· Award of Emergency Contract No. 50177 General Airport Security Services - Covenant Aviation Security, LLC - $1.7 Million

· Authorization to Issue a Request for Proposals for Contract No. 50178 General Airport Security Services

· Approval of Phase C6 to Contract No. 10011.66 Design-Build Services for the Terminal 1 Center Project - Hensel Phelps Construction Company - $152,281,655

· Approval of Phase C2 to Contract No. 8465C.66 Design-Build Services for Superbay Hangar Fire Suppression System Replacement Project - The Weitz Company, LLC - $18,436,291

· Approval of Phase C4 to Contract No. 9034.66 Design-Build Services for the Demolition of Terminal 2 Air Traffic Control Tower Project - Turner Construction Company - $7,056,391

· Award of Contract No. 11118.76 Design-Build Services for the International Terminal Building Phase 1 Project - Clark Construction Group - California, LP - $27,505,527

· Approval of Phase C8 of Contract No. 10504.66 Design-Build Services for the AirTrain Extension and Improvements Program - Skanska Constructors - $9,516,020

· Three Communications and Marketing Services Contracts Exercising the First of Two Two-Year Options to Extend the Contracts and Increase the Aggregate Not-to-Exceed Amount for the Contracts: 


· Modification No. 2 to Contract No. 50061 with Davis & Associates Communications, Inc. $800,000


· Modification No. 3 to Contract No. 50062 with Fuseideas / EIS Design, a Joint Venture $3,155,000; and,


· Modification No. 1 to Contract No. 50063 with Hill+Knowlton Strategies, LLC - $70,000

· Approval for Artwork in Terminal 1, Terminal 3 West, the Hotel, International Terminal G, and the Long Term Parking Garage 2 - $4,090,000

· Award of the Airport Concierge Service Lease Airport Terminal Services, Inc. dba Airport Butler

· Authorize Issuance of a Request for Proposals for Contract No. 11211.45 Airport Information Display System, and Authorize Staff to Negotiate a Five-Year Agreement with the Highest Ranked Proposer

· Authorization to Issue a Request for Proposals for Contract No. 50160 for Veterinary Care Services and Negotiate with the Highest Ranked Proposer

· Authorization to Issue a Request for Qualifications for Contract Nos. 11330.51, 11330.52, and 11330.53 for Three Master As-Needed Agreements for Environmental Remediation Services


· Rejection of All Proposals Received for Space 2 of the Terminal 3 PopUp Retail Concession Program and Authorization to Commence the New Request for Proposals Process for Space 2 of the Terminal 3 PopUp Retail Concession Program

· Approval of Substitution of BofAML Securities, Inc. for Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner, & Smith Incorporated as a Member of the Pool of PreQualified Investment Banking Firms Established in Connection with the Airport’s Capital Financing and Debt Management Program

· Modification No. 4 to Professional Services Contract No. 8768.41 Project Management Support Services for the Airport Hotel Project PGH Wong-MCK, JV

· Modification No. 2 to Contract No. 9059 Domestic Parking Garage Elevator Modernization Project Ascent Elevator Services, Inc. - Time Extension Only

· Correction of Commission Resolution No. 18-0073 to Restate the Initial Minimum Annual Guarantee for the Terminal 2 Specialty Retail Concession Lease No. 3 with Canonica New York, LLC, and Issuance of a Replacement Resolution Number

· Authorization to Transfer up to $20,000 to the Operating Fund Within the Airport Revenue Fund Representing Unclaimed Overpayments or Deposits of Airport Fees and Charges After Publication of Required Notice and Other Required Actions, and to Undertake this Procedure for Any Unclaimed Credit Balances in Future Fiscal Years

Port (Tuesday, April 24, 315PM) - CANCELLED

PUC (Tuesday, April 24, 130PM)


Discussion Only


· CleanPowerSF Update

· Bay Area Water Supply Conservation Agency Report

Action Items


· Approve the plans and specifications, and award Contract No. HH-991, 2018 Mountain Tunnel Interim Repairs, in the amount of $5,875,386, to the lowest, qualified, responsible and responsive bidder, Sierra Mountain Construction, Inc., to perform interim tunnel lining repairs and related work, until permanent repairs can be completed.

· Approve Modification No. 1 to Job Order Contract, JOC-60, General Engineering (A-License) for San Francisco, San Mateo, Santa Clara, and Alameda Counties with Cal State Constructors, Inc., to perform general engineering construction tasks for all San Francisco Public Utilities Commission enterprise operations and bureaus, increasing the contract by $2,500,000, for a total contract amount of $7,500,000, and increasing the duration by 365 consecutive calendar days (one year), for a total contract duration of 1,825 consecutive calendar days (five years), as allowed for JOCs under the San Francisco Administrative Code.

· Approve an increase to the existing contract duration contingency in the amount of 272 consecutive calendar days (approximately nine and a half months) for Contract No. WD-2832, Sunol Nursery; and authorize the General Manager to approve future modifications to the contract duration up to 420 consecutive calendar days (approximately 14 months), with no change in contract amount.

· Approve an increase to the existing construction contract duration contingency in the amount of 93 consecutive calendar days (approximately three months) for Contract No. WW-570, Oceanside Water Pollution Control Plant and Westside Pump Station HVAC Upgrades; and authorize the General to approve future modifications to the contract duration up to 720 consecutive calendar days (approximately two years), with no change in contract amount.

· Approve an increase to the existing construction contract cost contingency in the amount of $1,297,166, and an increase to the existing contract duration contingency in the amount of 104 consecutive calendar days (approximately three and a half months), for Contract No. WW-613, Southeast Water Pollution Control Plant Building 521/522 and Disinfection Upgrades; and authorize the General Manager to approve future modifications to the contract amount of up to $29,622,166, and future modifications to the contract duration of up to 1,089 consecutive calendar days (approximately three years).

· Approve an increase to the existing construction contract cost contingency in the amount of $352,032, and an increase in the contract duration contingency in the amount of 125 consecutive calendar days (approximately four months), for Contract No. WW-622, Haight-Ashbury/Tenderloin/Diamond Heights Districts Sewer Replacement and Paving Renovation; and authorize the General Manager to approve future modifications to the contract amount of up to $5,067,485, and up to 685 consecutive calendar days (approximately two years) to the contract duration.

· Approve an increase to the existing construction contract duration contingency in the amount of 147 consecutive calendar days (approximately five months) to Contract No. WW-631, Crocker Amazon/Excelsior/Ingleside Districts Sewer Replacement and Pavement Renovation; and authorize the General Manager to approve future modifications to the contract duration up to 702 consecutive calendar days (approximately two years), with no change to contract amount.

· Confirm and approve the analysis and conclusions set forth in the Water Supply Assessment for the proposed Potrero Power Station Project, pursuant to the State of California Water Code Section 10910 et seq. and California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Section 21151.9 and CEQA Guidelines Section 15155. 


· Authorize the General Manager to execute Modification No. 1 to the Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) with the United States Department of the Interior, National Park Service – Yosemite National Park, for Comprehensive Management of Watersheds within Yosemite National Park supplying the San Francisco Regional Water System, increasing the MOA agreement amount by $14,677,857, for a total Agreement amount not-to-exceed $27,004,364, and extend the duration by two years for a total duration of four years, subject to Board of Supervisors approval under Charter Section 9.118.


· Approve the 2018 Revised Baseline Scope, Schedule, and Budget for Phase 1 Sewer System Improvement Program Projects, a subset of projects within the adopted SFPUC Ten-Year Capital Plan for FY 2018-19 through FY 2027-28 for the Wastewater Enterprise.

· Conference with Legal Counsel – Existing Litigation: Pacific Bell Telephone Company v. City and County of San Francisco, San Francisco Superior Court Case No.: CGC-17-560617, Date Filed: August 9, 2017, Proposed settlement of action with release of all claims and the City to pay $67,500 (Closed Session)

· Conference with Legal Counsel – Existing Litigation: Luis Adolfo Marquez vs. City and County of San Francisco, San Francisco Superior Court Case No.: CGC-16-554676, Date Filed: October 5, 2016, Proposed settlement of action with release of all claims and the City to pay $150,000 (Closed Session)

· Conference with Legal Counsel - Existing Litigation: Restore Hetch Hetchy v City and County of San Francisco, California Court of Appeal, Fifth Appellate District Court, Case No.: F074107, City Law No.: 151139 / Date Filed July 12, 2016 (Closed Session)

Board of Appeals (Wednesday, April 25, 5PM)

Discussion Only


· SPECIAL ITEM - Presentation by representatives from the Fire Department, Department of Public Health and San Francisco Public Works on how each department reviews applications for Mobile Food Facility permits.

Action Items


· APPEAL - JOSEPH DENNY & SARA PERJALIAN vs. DEPT. OF BUILDING INSPECTION, Re: 121 Spear Street. Protesting the ISSUANCE on February 05, 2018, to Google, of an Alteration Permit (on second through fifth floors, new interconnecting stair and stair openings for tenant improvement project). Note: on April 18, 2018, the Board voted 4-0-1 (Commissioner Wilson recused) to continue this matter to allow time for the parties to negotiate.

APPEAL - JOSEPH DENNY & SARA PERJALIAN vs. DEPT. OF BUILDING INSPECTION, Re: 121 Spear Street. Protesting the ISSUANCE on February 06, 2018, to Google, of an Alteration Permit (fifth floor tenant improvement including build out of workstations, partitions and mechanical, electrical and plumbing; also, work on third floor MDF room; fire under separate permits).


APPEAL - JOSEPH DENNY & SARA PERJALIAN vs. DEPT. OF BUILDING INSPECTION, Re: 121 Spear Street.


Protesting the ISSUANCE on March 07, 2018, to Google, of an Alteration Permit (third floor office tenant improvement with mechanical, electrical and plumbing; new partitions, horizontal exit and finishes).


APPEAL - JOSEPH DENNY & SARA PERJALIAN vs. DEPT. OF BUILDING INSPECTION, Re: 121 Spear Street. Protesting the ISSUANCE on March 15, 2018, to Google, of an Alteration Permit (sixth floor office tenant improvement with mechanical, electrical and plumbing; new partitions, horizontal exit and finishes).


· APPEAL - JOHN PAXTON vs. DEPT. OF BUILDING INSPECTION, PLANNING DEPT. APPROVAL, Re: 330 Presidio Avenue. Protesting the ISSUANCE on January 11, 2018, to 330 Presidio Avenue LLC, of an Alteration Permit (addition of two Accessory Dwelling Units on the first floor of an existing six-unit building per Ordinance 30-15; seismic application is on BPA No. 2015/09/04/6211). Note: on March 21, 2018, the Board voted 4-0-1 (Commissioner Wilson absent) to continue this appeal to allow time for the departments to conduct a site visit to verify existing conditions.

· APPEAL - HANA EFTEKHARI vs. DEPT. OF BUILDING INSPECTION, PLANNING DEPT. APPROVAL, Re: 653 28th Street. Protesting the ISSUANCE on March 05, 2018, to Ravi Sadarangani of a Site Permit (to erect three stories, one basement, type V-B, single-family dwelling).


APPEAL - HANA EFTEKHARI vs. DEPT. OF BUILDING INSPECTION, PLANNING DEPT. APPROVAL, Re: 653 28th Street. Protesting the ISSUANCE on March 05, 2018, to Ravi Sadarangani, of a Demolition Permit (to demolish a two-story single-family dwelling).


APPEAL - DAVID TONG vs. DEPT. OF BUILDING INSPECTION, PLANNING DEPT. APPROVAL, Re: 653 28th Street. Protesting the ISSUANCE on March 05, 2018, to Ravi Sadarangani of a Site Permit (to erect three stories, one basement, type V-B, single-family dwelling).


APPEAL - GEORGIA SCHUTTISH vs. DEPT. OF BUILDING INSPECTION, PLANNING DEPT. APPROVAL, Re: 653 28th Street. Protesting the ISSUANCE on March 05, 2018, to Ravi Sadarangani, of a Demolition Permit (to demolish a two-story single-family dwelling).


· APPEAL - ABDALLA JOSEPH DBA “SAVE MOR MART” vs. DEPT. OF PUBLIC HEALTH, Re: 4522 3rd Street. Appealing the DENIAL on March 02, 2018, of a Tobacco Sales Establishment Permit (pursuant to Article 19H of the San Francisco Health Code).


Fire (Wednesday, April 25, 5PM)


Discussion Only


· OVERVIEW OF ASSISTANT DEPUTY CHIEF OF HOMELAND SECURITY’S POSITION - Assistant Deputy Chief of Homeland Security, Michael Cochrane to present an overview of his position

Police (Wednesday, April 25, 530PM) – CANCELLED

Southeast Facilities (Wednesday, April 25, 6PM)


Discussion Only


· 1550 Evans Update


· Maisin Scholars Program Update


· SECF Resolution on SFPUC Rates Package


· City College Southeast Campus Student Enrollment/Courses for 2016-17, 2017-18

· San Francisco’s Seawall Resiliency Project 


· Greenhouse Demolition Updates 

· Legacy Council Brunch


· Southeast Community Facility Committee Chairs


· Southeast Community Facility Budget


· 1800 Oakdale Update


· Interim Greenhouse Grant Program


· Futures Fair 2018

Action Items


· Letter to the San Francisco Planning Commission Reiteratine the desire of the Community to forego plans for housing at 1550 Evans

· Letter of Support to Kevin McCarty, Chair State Budget Sub-Committee #2 on behalf of the California Coalition For Equity In Early Care And Education


Status of Women (Wednesday, April 25, 4PM)


Discussion Only


· Resolution Recognizing Christine Pelosi


· Resolution Recognizing LYRIC

· Department on the Status of Women Legislative Update

· Commission/Department on the Status of Women 5-Year Strategic Plan FY2016-2020 Update

Housing Authority (Thursday, April 26, 3PM) - SPECIAL


Action Items


· Conference with Legal Counsel-Existing Litigation: DISTRICT COUNCIL 16 v. SAN FRANCISCO HOUSING AUTHORITY (Closed Session)

Housing Authority (Thursday, April 26, 4PM)

Action Items


· RESOLUTION APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING THE ACTING EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO AMEND CONTRACT #16-0009 WITH VACANT PROPERTY SECURITY LLC. TO INCREASE THE CONTRACT AMOUNT TO PROVIDE, INSTALL, AND MAINTAIN VACANT UNIT SECURE ENTRY SYSTEMS AT THE ALICE GRIFFITH HOUSING DEVELOPMENT IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED ONE HUNDRED TWENTY FOUR THOUSAND THREE HUNDRED FIFTEEN DOLLARS AND FIFTY SIX CENTS ($124,315.56)]


· RESOLUTION APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING THE ACTING EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO SUBMIT A REQUEST TO THE UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT (HUD) TO AMEND ITS APPROVAL OF SUNNYDALE INVENTORY REMOVAL APPLICATIONS DDA0007676 (PHASE 1A-1), DDA0007677 (PHASE 1A-2), AND DDA0007679 (PHASE 1B)


· RESOLUTION OF THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO (THE "AUTHORITY") APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING THE ACTING EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO ENTER INTO A CONSTRUCTION LICENSE AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN THE AUTHORITY AND SUNNYDALE INFRASTRUCTURE, LLC (THE "DEVELOPER") TO ENTER ONTO THE SUNNYDALE - VELASCO HOPE SF PROJECT TO PERFORM CERTAIN PREDEVELOPMENT WORK AND FOR THE DEMOLITION AND REMOVAL OF A PORTION OF THE EXISTING BUILDINGS ON THE PROJECT SITE


· RESOLUTION APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING THE ACTING EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO NEGOTIATE AND ENTER INTO A GRANT AGREEMENT WITH THE CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO, ACTING THROUGH THE MAYOR’S OFFICE OF HOUSING AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT (MOHCD) FOR RELOCATION COSTS AND SERVICES FOR SUNNYDALE HOUSEHOLDS RELOCATING FROM PHASE 1A-1 AND 1A-2 AND BUILDING 35F, IN PREPARATION FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF BLOCK 6, FOR A GRANT FROM MOHCD TO THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED TWO MILLION SEVEN HUNDRED SIXTY-SIX THOUSAND NINE HUNDRED FIFTY-SEVEN DOLLARS ($2,766,957), PENDING CITYWIDE AFFORDABLE HOUSING LOAN COMMITTEE APPROVAL OF THE GRANT

· RESOLUTION APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING THE ACTING EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO AWARD A PURCHASE ORDER CONTRACT TO BAY CITY BOILER FOR (2) RENTAL BOILERS AT ALICE GRIFFITH IN THE AMOUNT OF $97,702.50

· RESOLUTION APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING THE ACTING EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO AMEND THE TASK BASED CONTRACT #17-0016 FOR ASSET MANAGEMENT CONSULTING WITH TCAM TO INCREASE THE CONTRACT AMOUNT FOR ADDITIONAL TASKS IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED THREE HUNDRED THIRTY FOUR THOUSAND NINE HUNDRED THIRTEEN DOLLARS ($334,913) NOT-TO-EXCEED A TOTAL AMOUNT OF THREE HUNDRED NINETY EIGHT THOUSAND THREE HUNDRED THIRTEEN DOLLARS($398,313)

· RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AND APPROVING THE ACTING EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO ENTER INTO A THREE MONTH AGREEMENT WITH AN OPTION TO EXTEND FOR ANOTHER THREE MONTHS WITH BDO PHA FINANCE TO PERFORM ACCOUNTING AND FINANCE CONSULTING SERVICES FOR AN AMOUNT NOT-TO-EXCEED ONE HUNDRED THOUSAND DOLLARS ($100,000)


Human Rights (Thursday, April 26, 5PM)

Discussion Only


· Presentations on Neuro Divergent and Autism

· Update on Projects and Staff


· Next Steps on Data


· Joint Commission Meetings


Human Services (Thursday, April 26, 930AM)

Action Items


· Requesting ratification of actions taken by the Executive Director since the March 22, 2018 Regular Meeting in accordance with Commission authorization of April 26, 2018:


· Submission of requests to encumber funds in the total amount of $25,000 for purchase of services or supplies and contingency amounts;


· Submission of 0 temporary position(s) for possible use in order to fill positions on a temporary basis;


· Submission of report of 58 temporary appointment(s) made during the period of 3.13.18 thru 4.13.18.

· Requesting authorization to proclaim May 2018 as Foster Care Month, to include Resource Parent Appreciation

· Requesting adoption of resolution proclaiming May 2018 as CalFresh Awareness and Action Month

· Requesting authorization to modify the existing contract agreement with EXEMPLAR HUMAN SERVICES to provide consulting reporting services; during the period July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2021; in an amount of $630,000, plus a 10% contingency for a total amount not to exceed $1,309,000.

· Requesting authorization to renew the grant with SENECA FAMILY OF AGENCIES to provide wraparound services; during the period July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2020; in the amount of $9,100,000, plus a 5% contingency for a total amount not to exceed $9,555,000.

· Requesting authorization to enter into a new contract with ALLIED UNIVERSAL for the provision of Security Services; during the period of July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2021; in the amount of $12,704,160 plus a 10% contingency for a total contract amount not to exceed $13,974,576.


Planning (Thursday, April 26, 1PM)

Consideration of Items Proposed for Continuance 

· CENTRAL SOMA COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT – Planning Code Amendment regarding a Community Facilities District in Central SoMa. This amendment is part of the larger Central SoMa Plan, to be considered on May 10th, 2018. (Proposed Continuance to May 10, 2018)

· CENTRAL SOMA HOUSING SUSTAINABILITY DISTRICT – Business and Tax Regulations Code and Planning Code Amendments to create the Central South of Market Housing Sustainability District, encompassing an area generally bounded on its western portion by Sixth Street, on its eastern portion by Second Street, on its northern portion by the border of the Downtown Plan Area (an irregular border that generally jogs along Folsom, Howard and Stevenson Streets), and on its southern portion by Townsend Street, to provide a streamlined and ministerial approval process for certain housing projects meeting specific labor, on-site affordability, and other requirements; establishing a fee for applications for residential development permits within the District; making approval findings under the California Environmental Quality Act; making findings of public convenience, necessity, and welfare under Planning Code, Section 302; and making findings of consistency with the General Plan, and the eight priority policies of Planning Code, Section 101.1. Staff requests a continuance to the May 10th, 2018 hearing for action on this item, and proposes a separate informational item on the topic for the May 3rd, 2018 hearing. (Proposed Continuance to May 10, 2018)

· 3314 CESAR CHAVEZ STREET – north side between Mission Street and South Van Ness Avenue - Lot 012 in Assessor’s Block 6571 (District 9) - Request for Conditional Use Authorization, pursuant to Planning Code Sections 121.1 and 303 for the demolition of an existing 13,000 sq. ft. light industrial building and construction of a 65-ft. tall, six-story and 49,475 sq. ft. mixed-use building that includes approximately 11,430 sq. ft. of ground floor commercial retail and 48,365 sq. ft. of residential use for 58 dwelling units. The proposed project would also include a total 9,020 sq. ft. of private and common residential open space, 62 Class 1 bicycle parking spaces, and an approximately 6,300 sq. ft. basement-level garage for 27 accessory automobile and 1 car-share parking spaces. The subject properties are located within a Mission Street Neighborhood Commercial Transit (NCT) Zoning District and 65-X Height and Bulk District. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h). Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions (Proposed Continuance to June 7, 2018)

· MISSION DISTRICT NON-RESIDENTIAL USES – Planning Code Amendment to require Conditional Use Authorization for Restaurants, as defined in Planning Code Section 102, and for tasting rooms accessory to beer manufacturers with ABC License Type 23 and wine growers with ABC License Type 2, and to prohibit Restaurants with ABC License Type 75 within an area of the Mission Alcoholic Beverage Special Use District generally bounded by Mission Street (including any parcel within the Mission Street Neighborhood Commercial Transit District), 14th Street to Harrison Street to Division Street, Potrero Avenue and Cesar Chavez Street; within the Mission Street Neighborhood Commercial Transit District: limit the number of new Eating and Drinking Uses, as defined in Planning Code Section 102, to prohibit commercial storefront mergers resulting in a non-residential use size of 1,500 gross square feet or larger, to require street-fronting ground floor commercial uses in new developments greater than 10,000 gross square feet, to require Conditional Use authorization before replacing a legacy business, to allow Light Manufacturing uses, as defined in Planning Code Section 102, to allow Non-Retail Professional Services as defined in Planning Code Section 102, and to require additional consideration when analyzing a Conditional Use authorization application; and within the Urban Mixed Use zoning district along South Van Ness Avenue between 14th Street to 19th Street and extending east toward Shotwell Street and west toward Capp Street: extend Production, Distribution, and Repair (PDR) use replacement requirements to certain PDR use sizes; affirming the Planning Department’s determination under the California Environmental Quality Act; making findings of consistency with the General Plan and the eight priority policies of Planning Code Section 101.1; and making findings of public necessity, convenience, and welfare under Planning Code Section 302. (Proposed for Indefinite Continuance)

· 1805 DIVISADERO STREET – between Pine and Bush Streets, Lot 058 in Assessor’s Block 1049 (District 5) - Request for Conditional Use Authorization pursuant to Planning Code Sections 303, 317, and 711 to allow the removal of an unauthorized dwelling unit on the second story, and conversion of the space to a Retail Sales and Service (Gym) use (d.b.a. Core 40) within a NC-2 (Neighborhood Commercial District, Small-Scale) Zoning District and 40-X Height and Bulk District. The subject application seeks to abate Planning Enforcement Case No. 2017-004069ENF and Department of Building Inspection Complaint No. 20177332. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h). Preliminary Recommendation: Disapprove WITHDRAWN

Action Items


· 557 FILLMORE STREET – west side of Fillmore Street between Fell and Oak Streets; Lot 0102 in Assessor’s Block 0827 (District 5) – Request for a Condominium Conversion Subdivision, pursuant to Subdivision Code Sections 1332 and 1381, to convert a four-story, six-unit building into residential condominiums. The subject property is located within a RM-1 (Residential – Mixed, Low Density) Zoning District and 40-X Height and Bulk District. The project was determined not to be a project under CEQA Guidelines Sections 15060(c) and 15378 because there is no direct or indirect physical change in the environment. Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions

· 1222 HARRISON STREET – north side of Harrison Street, at the west corner of Harrison and 8th Streets, Lot 003 in Assessor’s Block 3756 (District 6) – Request for Conditional Use Authorization to establish a public parking garage at the subject property, within the WMUG Zoning District, pursuant to Planning Code Sections 303 and 844.41. The proposed public pay parking garage would occupy a maximum of 45 of the existing parking spaces in the accessory parking garage for the existing development on the site. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h). Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions

· 1750 HARRISON STREET – full block bounded by Division Street, Harrison Street, 14th Street, and Trainor Street, , Lot 051 in Assessor’s Block 3529 (District 9) – Request for Conditional Use Authorization to establish a public parking lot at the subject property within the PDR-1-G Zoning District, pursuant to Planning Code Sections 156, 210.3, and 303. The proposed public pay parking lot would occupy the existing accessory parking lot for OfficeMax. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h). Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions

· 901 BAYSHORE BOULEVARD – south eastern side of Bayshore Boulevard, on the southeast corner at Silver Street; Lot 072 in Assessor’s Block 5402 (District 10) – Request for Conditional Use Authorization, pursuant to Planning Code Sections 121.2, 303 and 710, to allow a non-residential use greater than 3,000 square feet within a NC-1 (Neighborhood Commercial, Cluster) Zoning District and 40-X Height and Bulk District. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h). Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions

· CANDLESTICK POINT HUNTERS POINT SHIPYARD PHASE 2: DEVELOPMENT PROJECT – GENERAL PLAN AMENDMENTS -- The Candlestick Point Hunters Point Shipyard Phase 2 development project consists of roughly 281 acres at Candlestick Point and generally encompasses the former Candlestick Park Stadium and parking lot, the Candlestick Point State Recreational Area, the Alice Griffith Housing development site and a Assessor’s Block 4991 / Lot 276 above the stadium site. The Hunters Point Shipyard Phase 2 site encompasses roughly 402 acres and includes all of Hunters Point Shipyard except for the portions referred to as “Hilltop” and “Hillside”. Approval of Amendments to the General Plan by (1) amending the boundaries of the Candlestick Point Sub-Area Plan of the Bayview Hunters Point Area Plan by removing Assessor’s Block 4991 / Lot 276; (2) amending the Hunters Point Shipyard Area Plan by removing discussion of the previously proposed stadium; and (3) and making conforming changes to Maps throughout the General Plan to be consistent with the new Candlestick Point Sub-Area Plan boundaries. These amendments are to align with and accommodate proposed changes to the Candlestick Point Hunters Point Shipyard Phase 2 development Project such that the resultant project would consist of approximately 10,672 units, 4,265,000 of R&D/Office use, 790,000 gsf of regional retail, 432,000 gsf of neighborhood retail and maker space, along with new schools, public facilities, artist studios, and visitor uses. The Project also includes establishing new streets and development blocks along with approximately of 338 acres of parks and open space. The Candlestick Point portion of the project is within the Bayview Hunters Point Redevelopment Project Area, the Candlestick Point Activity Node Special Use District, and the CP Height and Bulk District; the Hunters Point Shipyard portion of the site is within the Hunters Point Shipyard Redevelopment Project Area, the Hunters Point Shipyard Special Use District and HP Height and Bulk District. Preliminary Staff Recommendation: Recommend to the Board of Supervisors Approval of Amendments

CANDLESTICK POINT – PLANNING CODE MAP AMENDMENT – Candlestick Point is part of the Candlestick Point Hunters Point Shipyard Phase 2 development project and consists of roughly 281 acres and generally encompasses the former Candlestick Park stadium and parking lot, the Candlestick Point State Recreational Area, the Alice Griffith Housing development site and a Assessor’s Block 4991 / Lot 276 above the stadium site. Approval of Amendments to the Planning Code Maps by amending Sectional Map SU10 be removing Assessor’s Block 4991 / Lot 276 from the boundaries of the Candlestick Point Activity Node Special Use District; and (2) amend Sectional Map HT10 by redesignating Assessor’s Block 4991 / Lot 276 from CP Height and Bulk designation to 40-X Height and Bulk Designation. These amendments are to align with and accommodate proposed changes to the Candlestick Point Hunters Point Shipyard Phase 2 development Project such that the resultant project would consist of approximately 10,672 units, 4,265,000 gsf of R&D/office use, 790,000 gsf of regional retail, 432,000 gsf of neighborhood retail and maker space, along with new schools, public facilities, artist studios, and visitor uses. The Project also includes establishing new streets and development blocks along with approximately of 338 acres of parks and open space. The Candlestick Point portion of the project is within the Bayview Hunters Point Redevelopment Project Area, the Candlestick Point Activity Node Special Use District, and CP Height and Bulk District. Preliminary Staff Recommendation: Recommend to the Board of Supervisors Approval of Amendments

CANDLESTICK POINT HUNTERS POINT SHIPYARD PHASE 2: DEVELOPMENT PROJECT – GENERAL PLAN CONSISTENCY FINDINGS ASSOCIATED WITH REDEVELOPMENT PLAN AMENDMENTS – The Candlestick Point Hunters Point Shipyard Phase 2 development project consists of roughly 281 acres at Candlestick Point and generally encompasses the former Candlestick Park Stadium and parking lot, the Candlestick Point State Recreational Area, the Alice Griffith Housing development site and a Assessor’s Block 4991 / Lot 276 above the stadium site. The Hunters Point Shipyard Phase 2 site encompasses roughly 402 acres and includes all of Hunters Point Shipyard except for the portions referred to as “Hilltop” and “Hillside”. Findings of Consistency with the General Plan for (1) amendments to the Bayview Hunters Point Redevelopment Plan; and (2) amendments to the Hunters Point Shipyard Redevelopment Plan. These amendments are to align with and accommodate proposed changes to the Candlestick Point Hunters Point Shipyard Phase 2 development Project such that the resultant project would consist of approximately 10,672 units, 4,265,000 of R&D/Office use, 790,000 gsf of regional retail, 432,000 gsf of neighborhood retail and maker space, along with new schools, public facilities, artist studios, and visitor uses. The Project also includes establishing new streets and development blocks along with approximately of 338 acres of parks and open space. The Candlestick Point portion of the project is within the Bayview Hunters Point Redevelopment Project Area, the Candlestick Point Activity Node Special Use District, and the CP Height and Bulk District; the Hunters Point Shipyard portion of the site is within the Hunters Point Shipyard Redevelopment Project Area, the Hunters Point Shipyard Special Use District and HP Height and Bulk District. Preliminary Staff Recommendation: Find the Redevelopment Plan Amendments Consistent with the General Plan

CANDLESTICK POINT HUNTERS POINT SHIPYARD PHASE 2: DEVELOPMENT PROJECT – AMENDMENTS TO THE CANDLESTICK POINT AND HUNTERS POINT SHIPYARD DESIGN FOR DEVELOPMENT DOCUMENTS – The Candlestick Point Hunters Point Shipyard Phase 2 development project consists of roughly 281 acres at Candlestick Point and generally encompasses the former Candlestick Park Stadium and parking lot, the Candlestick Point State Recreational Area, the Alice Griffith Housing development site and a Assessor’s Block 4991 / Lot 276 above the stadium site. The Hunters Point Shipyard Phase 2 site encompasses roughly 402 acres and includes all of Hunters Point Shipyard except for the portions referred to as “Hilltop” and “Hillside”. Approval of Amendments to (1) Candlestick Point Design for Development Document by removing Assessor’s Block 4991 / Lot 276 from the document ; and (2) fully amending the Hunters Point Shipyard Phase 2 Design for Development document. These amendments are to align with and accommodate proposed changes to the Candlestick Point Hunters Point Shipyard Phase 2 development Project such that the resultant project would consist of approximately 10,672 units, 4,265,000 of R&D/Office use, 790,000 gsf of regional retail, 432,000 gsf of neighborhood retail and maker space, along with new schools, public facilities, artist studios, and visitor uses. The Project also includes establishing new streets and development blocks along with approximately of 338 acres of parks and open space. The Candlestick Point portion of the project is within the Bayview Hunters Point Redevelopment Project Area, the Candlestick Point Activity Node Special Use District, and the CP Height and Bulk District; the Hunters Point Shipyard portion of the site is within the Hunters Point Shipyard Redevelopment Project Area, the Hunters Point Shipyard Special Use District and HP Height and Bulk District. Preliminary Staff Recommendation: Approve

· 1140-1150 HARRISON STREET – north side between Langton Street and Berwick Place, Lot 023 in Assessor’s Block 3755 (District 6) – Request for Conditional Use Authorization pursuant to Planning Code Sections 263.29, 823 and 303 to allow demolition of an existing 75,625 sq. ft. industrial building and the new construction of a six- to seven-story, 65-ft. tall and 427,936 sq. ft., mixed-use development containing six ground-floor commercial units with accessory residential use, up to 371 dwelling units, 29,815 sq. ft. of open space, a mid- block public pedestrian alley, and a 69,547 sq. ft. basement garage for 170 residential and three car-share parking spaces, two service vehicle loading spaces, and 420 Class 1 & 2 bicycle parking spaces. The project is also requesting exceptions to the Planning Code requirements for rear yard (Section 134), permitted obstructions (Section 136), dwelling unit exposure (Section 140), off-street parking (Section 151.1), off-street loading (Section 152.1), building height (Section 260), height limits for narrow streets (Section 261.1), and mid-block alley (Section 270.2). The subject property is located in a WMUG (Western SoMa Mixed-Use-General) Zoning District and 55/65-X Height and Bulk District. This notice also meets Section 312 requirements for public notification. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h). Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions

· 284 ROOSEVELT WAY – west side of Roosevelt Way between Masonic and Park Hill Avenues, Lot 037 in Assessor’s Block 2607 (District 8) – Request for Conditional Use Authorization, pursuant to Planning Code Sections 303 and 317, to legalize the tantamount to demolition of the existing single-family home, and to permit the construction of an approximately 4,020 square foot, three-story-over-garage, two-family home. The project site is located within a Residential House, Two-Family (RH-2) Zoning District and 40-X Height and Bulk District. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h). Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions

· 1443 NORIEGA STREET – south side of Noriega Street, at the corner of 22nd Avenue, Lot 010A in Assessor’s Block 2058 (District 4) – Request for Conditional Use Authorization for change of use from foot/chair massage to massage establishment (d.b.a. “Sweet & Smile Massage”) at the subject property, pursuant to Planning Code Sections 303 and 731. Interior tenant improvement is proposed with no changes to the building exterior. The project site is located within a NCD (Noriega Street Neighborhood Commercial District) and 40-X Height and Bulk District. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h). Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions

· 2 LUPINE AVENUE – west end of Lupine Avenue, at the corner of Dicha Alley, Lot 039 in Assessor’s Block 1069 (District 1) – Request for Conditional Use Authorization, pursuant to Planning Code Sections 207 and 303 to permit the construction of a two-story single-family dwelling on a vacant portion of the subject property currently occupied by a three-story, 5-unit residential building. The project site is located within a Residential House, Three-Family (RH-3) Zoning District and 40-X Height and Bulk District. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h). Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions

· 425 MASON STREET – west side of Mason Street between Geary and Post Streets, Lot 002 in Assessor’s Block 0306 (District 3) – Request for Conditional Use Authorization, pursuant to Planning Code Section 303, to allow for conversion of the historic Spring Valley Water Company building (Constructed in1922; Willis Polk, architect) from Office to Hotel use. The project would preserve historic lobby features subject to a Preservation Easement, create 77 tourist hotel rooms on the upper floors and establish a rooftop lounge within the existing 1-story penthouse structure. A new stair penthouse would provide a second means of egress for a roof deck. The project site is located within a Downtown General Commercial (C-3-G) Zoning District and 80-130-F Height and Bulk District. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h). Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions

· 120 STOCKTON STREET – east side of Stockton Street between O’Farrell and Geary Streets, Lot 017 in Assessor’s Block 0313 (District 3) – Request for Downtown Project Authorization, pursuant to Planning Code Section 309, with exceptions from the height requirement of Planning Code Sections 263.8, 270 and 272, from the bulk requirement of Planning Code Section 270, and from the ground-level wind speed requirement of Planning Code Section 148. The application under review is part of a project proposal to convert an existing, 250, 021sf single-tenant retail building for multi-tenant use. The project site is located within a Downtown Commercial Retail (C-3-R) Zoning District and 80-130-F Height and Bulk District. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h). Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions

120 STOCKTON STREET – east side of Stockton Street between O’Farrell and Geary Streets, Lot 017 in Assessor’s Block 0313 (District 3) – Request for Conditional Use Authorization, pursuant to Planning Code Sections 210.2 and 303, to allow for more than 5,000 sf of office use as part of a proposal to convert an existing, 250,021sf single-tenant retail building for multi-tenant use. The project site is located within a Downtown Commercial Retail (C-3-R) Zoning District and 80-130-F Height and Bulk District. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h). Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions

120 STOCKTON STREET – east side of Stockton Street between O’Farrell and Geary Streets, Lot 017 in Assessor’s Block 0313 (District 3) – Application for Office Allocation, pursuant to Planning Code Sections 210.2 and 321, to establish 49,999 square feet of office use as part of a proposal to convert an existing, 250,021sf single-tenant retail building for multi-tenant use. The project site is located within a Downtown Commercial Retail (C-3-R) Zoning District and 80-130-F Height and Bulk District. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h). Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions

· 1600 JACKSON STREET – north side of Jackson Street, between Polk Street and Van Ness Avenues, Lots 002 and 003 in Assessor’s Block 0595 (District 3) – Request for Conditional Use Authorization to allow a new General Grocery store (a Retail Sales and Services Use) operating as a Formula Retail Use (d.b.a. “365 by Whole Foods”) at the subject property, pursuant to Planning Code Sections 303, 303.1, 703(d), 703.4, and 723. The proposed project would involve both interior and exterior tenant improvements to the existing two-story-over-garage building, with no expansion of the existing structure. The proposed project would utilize the existing below-grade parking garage with 70 vehicular parking spaces (one to be reserved for car-sharing) and off-street loading dock fronting Jackson Street, while adding 21 bicycle parking spaces (5 Class I and 16 Class 2 spaces) where none existed before. The General Grocery store would occupy the entirety of the existing structure containing approximately 43,900 gross square feet, with a take-out food area located on floor one, dining/seating area on floor two, and accessory office space on floor two. The proposed project does not constitute a change of use as the previous use (d.b.a. “Lombardi Sports”) and the proposed use are both considered Retail Sales and Services Uses under the Planning Code. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h). Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions

· 3747 JACKSON STREET – south side of Jackson Street between Cherry and Maple Streets, Lot 021 in Assessor’s Block 0989 (District 1) – Requests for Discretionary Review of Building Permit Application No. 2017.04.14.4072 proposing the construction of 1- and 3-story horizontal rear additions, a 4th floor vertical addition, the expansion of the existing basement level to accommodate an additional off-street parking space, minor alterations to the front façade, and interior alterations to the existing single-family dwelling within a Residential House, One-Family (RH-1) Zoning District and 40-X Height and Bulk District. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h). Staff Analysis: Abbreviated Discretionary Review Preliminary Recommendation: Do Not Take Discretionary Review and Approve

Misc. 

· Zoning Variance Hearing (Wednesday, April 25, 930AM) 



From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
To: Richards, Dennis (CPC); Johnson, Milicent (CPC); Koppel, Joel (CPC); Moore, Kathrin (CPC); Melgar, Myrna (CPC);

planning@rodneyfong.com; Rich Hillis; Aaron Jon Hyland - HPC; Andrew Wolfram (andrew@tefarch.com); Black, Kate (CPC);
Diane Matsuda; Ellen Johnck - HPC; Jonathan Pearlman; Richard S. E. Johns
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
Sent: Friday, April 20, 2018 9:10 AM
To: Quesada, Amy (PRT); Valdez, Anthony (ENV); Badasow, Bridget (HSA) (DSS); Chan, Donald (REG); Varner,
Christina (RNT); Stewart, Crystal (ADM); Vaughn, Carla (PUC); Mauer, Dan (REC); Hood, Donna (PUC);
dwanekennedy@gmail.com; Nelson, Eric (ADM); Ethics Commission, (ETH); Commission, Film (ECN); Gannon, Lori
(HRC); Cantara, Gary (BOA); Larrick, Herschell (WOM); Jean Caramatti (AIR); Norris, Jennifer (WAR); Ionin, Jonas
(CPC); Austin, Kate (ADM); Kilshaw, Rachael (POL); LaBarre, Elizabeth (HSA); LaCroix, Leah (BOS); Scott, Laini
(HSS); lhathhorn@asianart.org; McArthur, Margaret (REC); Morewitz, Mark (DPH); martinl@sfha.org; Conefrey,
Maureen (FIR); Mahajan, Menaka (ECN); Brown, Michael (CSC); Millham, Sofia (RET); Hewitt, Nadya (REG); Nickens,
Norm (RET); OCII, CommissionSecretary (CII); Gerber, Patricia (CPC); Silva-Re, Pauline (JUV); Polk, Zoe (HRC); Pon,
Adrienne (ADM); Tom, Risa (POL); Boomer, Roberta (MTA); Blackman, Sue (LIB); SFVACSECRETARY@gmail.com ;
Page_Ritchie, Sharon (ART); Shore, Elena (ADM); Harris, Sonya (DBI); Tristan Wyatt (tristanwyattsfvac@gmail.com)
Subject: Asian Pacific American Heritage Awards Ceremony 5/2
 
Commission Secretaries,
Please send this invitation to your Commissioners to join Mayor Mark Farrell for the celebration of Asian
American Heritage Month on Wednesday, May 2, 2018 at 5:30pm at the War Memorial Herbst Theater. RSVP
directly online at apasf.org.
Thank you!
Francis
 
Francis Tsang
Deputy Chief of Staff
Office of Mayor Mark Farrell
City and County of San Francisco

415.554.6467 | francis.tsang@sfgov.org
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Mayor Mark E. Farrell
Cordially invites you to join him at the


Asian Pacific American Heritage Awards Ceremony


Presentation of the First Annual Edwin Mah Lee Public Service Award 
and Recognition of Organizations for Milestone Achievements


Chinese Historical Society of America     Nihonmachi Street Fair 
Pistahan Parade & Festival    San Francisco Symphony Youth Orchestra


Wednesday, May 2, 2018
5:30 pm


War Memorial Herbst Theater 
401 Van Ness Avenue, San Francisco


Post Ceremony Reception
San Francisco City Hall


Registration is required for this free event.
Please RSVP online at www.apasf.org.


Seating limited.
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